
           

TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL  

Monday, JULY 11, 2016
 

 

JUANITA POHL CENTER  

8513 SW Tualatin Road  

Tualatin, OR 97062  

WORK SESSION begins at 5:30 p.m.
BUSINESS MEETING begins at 7:00 p.m.

     Mayor Lou Ogden

Council President Monique Beikman

Councilor Wade Brooksby     Councilor Frank Bubenik
Councilor Joelle Davis           Councilor Nancy Grimes

Councilor Ed Truax
 

Welcome! By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process
of representative government. To encourage that participation, the City Council has specified a
time for your comments on its agenda, following Announcements, at which time citizens may
address the Council concerning any item not on the agenda or to request to have an item
removed from the consent agenda. If you wish to speak on a item already on the agenda,
comment will be taken during that item. Please fill out a Speaker Request Form and submit it to
the Recording Secretary. You will be called forward during the appropriate time; each speaker
will be limited to three minutes, unless the time limit is extended by the Mayor with the consent
of the Council.

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred
to on this agenda are available for review on the City website at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings, the Library located at 18878 SW Martinazzi Avenue, and on
file in the Office of the City Manager for public inspection. Any person with a question
concerning any agenda item may call Administration at 503.691.3011 to make an inquiry
concerning the nature of the item described on the agenda.

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, you should contact Administration at 503.691.3011. Notification
thirty-six (36) hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to this meeting.

Council meetings are televised live the day of the meeting through Washington County Cable
Access Channel 28. The replay schedule for Council meetings can be found at www.tvctv.org.
Council meetings can also be viewed by live streaming video on the day of the meeting at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings.

Your City government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend the City of Tualatin
Council meetings often.

 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings
http://www.tvctv.org/
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings


 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS
A legislative public hearing is typically held on matters which affect the general welfare of the
entire City rather than a specific piece of property.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the subject.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken.
4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When the Council has finished questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, deny, or continue the public
    hearing.
 

PROCESS FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS
A quasi-judicial public hearing is typically held for annexations, planning district changes,
conditional use permits, comprehensive plan changes, and appeals from subdivisions,
partititions and architectural review.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the case to be considered.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken:

a) In support of the application
b) In opposition or neutral

4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When Council has finished its questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, approve with conditions, or 
    deny the application, or continue the public hearing. 
 

TIME LIMITS FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS
The purpose of time limits on public hearing testimony is to provide all provided all interested
persons with an adequate opportunity to present and respond to testimony. All persons providing
testimony shall be limited to 3 minutes, subject to the right of the Mayor to amend or waive the
time limits.

EXECUTIVE SESSION INFORMATION
An Executive Session is a meeting of the City Council that is closed to the public to allow the City
Council to discuss certain confidential matters. An Executive Session may be conducted as a
separate meeting or as a portion of the regular Council meeting. No final decisions or actions
may be made in Executive Session. In many, but not all, circumstances, members of the news
media may attend an Executive Session.

The City Council may go into Executive Session for certain reasons specified by Oregon law.
These reasons include, but are not limited to: ORS 192.660(2)(a) employment of personnel;
ORS 192.660(2)(b) dismissal or discipline of personnel; ORS 192.660(2)(d) labor relations; ORS
192.660(2)(e) real property transactions; ORS 192.660(2)(f) information or records exempt by
law from public inspection; ORS 192.660(2)(h) current litigation or litigation likely to be filed; and
ORS 192.660(2)(i) employee performance of chief executive officer.

 



 

OFFICIAL AGENDA OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR JULY 11,
2016

             

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1.   Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update for July 2016 
 

2.   ArtSplash Art Show & Sale
 

3. New Employee Introduction- Police Chief Bill Steele
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will
be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you wish
to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 

1.   Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Work Session and Regular Meeting
of June 27, 2016

 

2.   Consideration of Resolution No. 5288-16, A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Municipal Court
Services to the City of Durham

 

3.   Consideration of Resolution No. 5286-16 Authorizing an Intergovernmental
Agreement with Metro for Participation with the Regional Illegal Dumping (RID) Patrol

 

4.   Consideration of Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Interrobang LLC
 

5.   Consideration of Resolution No. 5281-16  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Tualatin Police Officers Association

 

E. GENERAL BUSINESS



E. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will be
called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

1.   Tualatin City Hall Decision on Next Steps 
 

F. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

 

G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 

H. ADJOURNMENT
 



City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/11/2016  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Update on the Youth Advisory

Council's Activities for July 2016

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Tualatin Youth Advisory Council Update for July 2016 

SUMMARY

A. YAC Update 



TUALATIN YOUTH ADVISORY 
COUNCIL 

Council Update July 11, 2016 



Kaleidoscope Run  

Tualatin YAC – Youth Participating in Governance 

 Held June 17, 2016 at Ibach Park 
 Beginning of summer 

celebration for grades 6-12 
 Collaboration between YAC and 

TLC 



Movies on the Commons 

 Free, family-friendly movies 
 Saturdays in July & August 

 YAC sells concessions 
 

Tualatin YAC – Youth Participating in Governance 





City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/11/2016  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: ArtSplash Art Show & Sale

ANNOUNCEMENTS
ArtSplash Art Show & Sale

SUMMARY
ArtSplash Art Show & Sale- join the fun July 22, 23, and 24 for art, music, food and more!

ArtSplash PowerPoint Slides 



Art Show and Sale 



Tualatin Lake of the Commons 
8325 SW Nyberg Street 
Show Hours: 

Friday, July 22   12 pm-9 pm 
Saturday, July 23  11 am-8 pm 
Sunday, July 24   11 am-4 pm 

 



Activities all weekend 
 
Friday, July 22 

•Concerts on the Commons 
featuring Johnny Limbo and 
the Lugnuts 

 
Saturday, July 23 

•Kids Art Tent 
•Concert featuring Tom Grant 
•Movies on the Commons 

 
Sunday, July 24 

•Chalk it up 
•Concert by New Horizons 
Big Band of Tualatin 



Sponsored by the Tualatin Arts Advisory Committee 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 07/11/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Work Session and Regular
Meeting of June 27, 2016

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve the minutes for the Work Session and Regular
Meeting of June 27, 2016.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council adopt the attached minutes.

Attachments: City Council Work Session Minutes for June 27, 2016
City Council Meeting Minutes for June 27, 2016



OFFICIAL MINUTES OF TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION FOR JUNE 27, 2016 

Present: Councilor Wade Brooksby; Councilor Frank Bubenik; Councilor Joelle Davis;
Councilor Nancy Grimes; Councilor Ed Truax 

Absent: Mayor Lou Ogden; Council President Monique Beikman 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Deputy City Recorder
Nicole Morris; Maintenance Services Division Manager Clayton Reynolds; Police
Captain Mark Gardner; Assistant to the City Manager Tanya Williams 

 

CALL TO ORDER

Councilor Truax called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m.
 

               

1. Initiative Measure 2015-01i Update.   

 
  City Attorney Sean Brady introduced Attorney Peter Watts of Jordan Ramis to

present an update on initiative measure 2015-01i. Attorney Watts was contracted
by the City to write the explanatory statement. He briefed the Council on the
prepared explanatory statement. He noted the ambiguity of the measures in certain
municipal code section creates legal risk in the fact eight code sections would need
to be amended if the measure is to be passed.

Councilor Truax asked if the Council could put forth a measure and if so what the
timeline would be. City Manager Lombos stated a measure would have to be put
together by the August 8 Council meeting.

Councilor Grimes asked what the options are. Attorney Watts explained that the
City would need to write several measures because the City Charter has a
separate vote requirement.

 

2. Civic Center Public Involvement.   

 
  City Manager Sherilyn Lombos presented the results from the Civic Center public

involvement. She stated information will be presented tonight and staff will need
next step direction from the Council at the July 11 work session.

Consultant Sara Singer presented background on the development of the
alternatives and the final alternative selections. She stated in April Council gave
direction to create a public involvement plan on the final alternatives. Consultant
Singer briefly reviewed the public involvement goals that were established.

Assistant to the City Manager Tanya Williams summarized the public involvement
activities which included stand alone community meeting and events, social media
outreach, focus groups, and surveys. She noted the key findings of the statistically

June 27, 2016
1 of 3 

  



valid survey were Tualatin voters were very positive about the general direction of
the City and  many did not believe a Civic Center is necessary. Of those who did
want a Civic Center a preference for the Police Department site was shown.
Manager Williams also noted the online survey received 547 responses with 65%
or respondents believing a Civic Center would be valuable but were split on
whether or not they would support the project. Other activities included an open
house, business community engagement, direct mailings, emails, and additional
press.

City Manager Lombos spoke to the Council Decision Making process. She stated
outreach has been completed and the Council has many data points to consider
now. She reminded the Council they would need to give direction at the July 11
meeting in order to have something on the ballot at the November election.

Councilor Truax thanked staff for conducting some of the best public involvement
he has seen to date. His largest issue is the project morphed from a City Hall to a
Civic Center and he doesn’t agree with the connotation of a Civic Center. At this
time he doesn’t feel there is enough level of community support to put it on the
ballot.

Councilor Bubenik was discouraged by the results of the statistically valid survey.
He believes there is not enough time before the November election to properly
educate the public on the issue.

Councilor Brooksby agrees with Councilor Truax that at this time there is not
enough support to place it on the ballot.

Councilor Davis was also disappointed with the results from the surveys but does
not want to pass up the opportunity to place the measure on the ballot. She would
like to see the two-story option on the commons presented.

Councilor Grimes would like to consider placing the measure on the ballot in May.
City Manager Lombos stated voter turnout is better at general elections.

Councilor Davis stated it took the Library three election cycles for the measure to
pass. She explained it is about educating the public at each opportunity.

Councilor Bubenik stated he would be interested in looking at the May ballot.

Council consensus was to continue further discussing options at the July 11
meeting.

 

3. Council Meeting Agenda Review, Communications & Roundtable.
 
  None.
 

 

ADJOURNMENT

June 27, 2016
2 of 3 

  



ADJOURNMENT

The work session adjourned at  6:44 p.m.

 
Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

June 27, 2016
3 of 3 

  



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR JUNE
27, 2016 

 

Present: Councilor Wade Brooksby; Councilor Frank Bubenik; Councilor Joelle Davis;
Councilor Nancy Grimes; Councilor Ed Truax 

Absent: Mayor Lou Ogden; Council President Monique Beikman 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Community Services
Director Paul Hennon; Finance Director Don Hudson; Deputy City Recorder Nicole
Morris; Maintenance Services Division Manager Clayton Reynolds; Police Captain
Mark Gardner; Assistant to the City Manager Tanya Williams; Library Manager
Jerianne Thompson; Human Resources Director Janet Newport; Public Works
Director Jerry Postema 

 

               

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 
  Councilor Truax called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.
 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1. New Employee Introduction- Library Assistant Mariah Reeves
 
  Community Services Director Paul Hennon introduced Library Assistant Mariah

Reeves. The Council welcomed her.
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 
  None.
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you wish
to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 
  MOTION by Councilor Nancy Grimes, SECONDED by Councilor Joelle Davis to

June 27, 2016
1 of 6 

  



  MOTION by Councilor Nancy Grimes, SECONDED by Councilor Joelle Davis to
adopt the consent agenda. 

 
Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,

Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Work Session and Regular Meeting
of June 13, 2016

  

 

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 5279-16 Approving and Authorizing the Provision of
Workers' Compensation Insurance Coverage to Volunteers of the City of Tualatin and
Repealing Resolution No. 5244-15

  

 

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 5283-16 Amending Water, Sewer and Surface
Water Management Rates Inside the City of Tualatin and Rescinding Resolution
5241-15

  

 

4. Consideration of Resolution No. 5282-16 Authorizing Changes to the Adopted
2015-2016 Budget

  

 

5. Consideration of Resolution No. 5287-16 Authorizing an Intergovernmental
Agreement Between the City of Durham and the City of Tualatin for the Performance
of Police Services within the City of Durham's Boundaries

  

 

6. Consideration of Resolution No. 5280-16 Authorizing Personnel Services Updates
for Non-Represented Employees and for Tualatin for Fiscal Year 2016-17

  

 

E. SPECIAL REPORTS
 

1. Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue State of the District Presentation by Fire Chief Mike
Duyck

 
  Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVFR) District Fire Chief Mike Duyck presented

an annual update for the fire district. He covered emergency response and
communication statistics for 2015 noting calls have risen 45% since 2011. Chief
Duyck also spoke to the success of the mobile integrated health program, upcoming
firefighter recruitment, and new regional partnerships.

Councilor Davis thanked TVFR for their outstanding service in the City. She
expressed excitement about their expansion into the eastside of Tualatin.

 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Legislative or Other
 

1. Consideration of Resolution No. 5285-16 Adopting the City of Tualatin Budget for
the Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2016, Making Appropriations, Levying
Ad-Valorem Taxes, and Categorizing the Levies

  

 
 

June 27, 2016
2 of 6 

  



  Finance Director Don Hudson presented the fiscal year 2016–17 Budget. The
Budget Advisory Committee approved the proposed budget on May 31, 2016. The
total of the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Budget is $84,133,510. The tax rate of $2.2665 per
$1,000 taxable assessed value, with $975,000 to be levied for bonded debt is
included in the budget. The budget is a fiscally prudent budget with a positive
ongoing alignment.
 
Director Hudson presented proposed changes to the budget approved by the
Budget Advisory Committee noting all amendments are related to projects in the
General Fund and Parks Development Fund that were not completed during FY
2015-2016, as originally planned. He stated the Council can change the budget by
10% in each fund as they see fit.
 
PUBLIC COMMENT
None.
 
COUNCIL QUESTIONS/DELIBERATIOSN
None.

 

  MOTION by Councilor Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Nancy Grimes to
adopt Resolution No. 5285-16 Adopting the City of Tualatin Budget for the Fiscal
Year Commencing July 1, 2016, Making Appropriations, Levying Ad-Valorem Taxes,
and Categorizing the Levies

 
Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,

Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

G. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will be
called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

1. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1395-16 Relating to the Road Utility and Amending
Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 3-4

  

 
  Finance Director Don Hudson presented an ordinance related to the road utility fee.

He stated in 1987-88, the City developed a pavement management plan for
purposes of determining the costs of maintaining City streets. In 1989, the City
Council commissioned a study to examine the various funding options available to
the City for road maintenance. The report recommended the City establish a utility
based revenue source so as to best address citizen desires for equity, revenue
stability and flexibility.  The City Council adopted an Ordinance in April 1990 setting
the road utility fee. The rates have not been changed since the ordinance took
effect. With costs of the program increasing an analysis of the program was
done. The first recommendation of the analysis is to account for the inflationary
impacts on the maintenance costs by indexing the road utility fee. The index chosen
was the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index for Seattle, Washington,
which is the same index, used for the indexing of the Water and Parks System

June 27, 2016
3 of 6 

  



Development Charges. The category rates are proposed to be updated using this
index and will begin on July 1, 2017.

Director Hudson stated the analysis also determined placing a lien on delinquent
properties is not practical, but rather handling a delinquent road utility fee in the
same manner as other delinquent utility charges is the best option. The ordinance
tonight proposes a change to reflect handling of delinquent accounts the same way
in which other utility accounts are managed. 

Councilor Truax hopes when the analysis is complete staff will return with a ten year
plan to catch the City up to current standards. Public Works Director Postema stated
staff will be back in three to five months with the completed ten year
recommendations and any potential rate increases.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

COUNCIL QUESTIONS/DELIBERATIONS
Councilor Grimes asked about the significant rate increase for non-residential
groups. Director Hudson stated it only affects four accounts, all of which are city
property, and was a typo in the original ordinance.

Councilor Bubenik asked if all utility delinquencies are handled by the same person.
Director Hudson stated one staff member handles all the billings and delinquencies
for the City.

 

  MOTION by Councilor Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Nancy Grimes for first
reading by title only. 

 
Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,

Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
  MOTION by Councilor Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Nancy Grimes for

second reading by title only. 
 

Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,
Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 

Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
  MOTION by Councilor Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Nancy Grimes to

adopt Ordinance No. 1395-16 relating to the road utility and amending Tualatin
Municipal Code Chapter 3-4. 

 
Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,

Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 

June 27, 2016
4 of 6 

  



MOTION CARRIED 
 

2. Consideration of Ordinance No. 1394-16 Establishing a Core Area Parking District
(CAPD) Tax Rate of $155.34 for Fiscal Year 2016-17

  

 
  Finance Director Don Hudson presented an ordinance to establish the Core Area

Parking District (CAPD) tax rate for fiscal year 2016-17. The Core Area Parking
Board and staff are recommending the tax rate remain at the current rate of $155.34
for the upcoming year. The rate is multiplied by the number of parking spaces each
tenant is estimated to need within the district. With the current tax rate, the total
estimated revenue for the District is $55,000. 

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

COUNCIL QUESTIONS/DELIBERATIONS
Councilor Bubenik asked if when the results of ADA Survey and Inspection are
returned if the City will be responsible for paying for the upgrades. Public Works
Director Jerry Postema stated the results will go through the Core Area Parking
Board who will make a recommendation to Council to potentially raise the tax to
cover the cost.

 

  MOTION by Councilor Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Nancy Grimes for first
reading by title only. 

 
Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,

Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
  MOTION by Councilor Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Frank Bubenik for

second reading by title only.  
 

Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,
Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 

Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
  MOTION by Councilor Joelle Davis, SECONDED by Councilor Frank Bubenik to

adopt Ordinance No. 1394-16 establishing a Core Area Parking District (CAPD) tax
rate of $155.34 for fiscal year 2016-17. 

 
Aye:  Councilor Wade Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis,

Councilor Nancy Grimes, Councilor Ed Truax 
Other:  Mayor Lou Ogden (Absent), Council President Monique Beikman (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

H. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

June 27, 2016
5 of 6 

  



H. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

 

I. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 
  Councilor Davis announced 911 communications is preparing to launch text to 911

starting August 1.

Councilor Bubenik thanked the Police Department for holding a great retirement
event for now retired Police Chief Kent Barker.

 

J. ADJOURNMENT
 
  Councilor Truax adjourned the meeting at 7:48 p.m.
 

 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

June 27, 2016
6 of 6 

  



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Don Hudson, Finance Director

DATE: 07/11/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5288-16, A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Intergovernmental Agreement to Provide Municipal Court
Services to the City of Durham

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Whether or not to approve Resolution No. 5288-16

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the attached resolution.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
With the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of Tualatin and the City of
Durham for police services recently being renewed, staff took the opportunity to review other
existing IGA's between the two cities for necessary updates to language and content.  One such
IGA is the agreement in place for the Tualatin Municipal Court to provide municipal court
services to the City of Durham.  The existing IGA, signed in 2011, was a perpetual IGA that
needed some minor language updating.  There are no sustentative changes besides changing
the term from perpetual to a 5 year term, in order to have the opportunity to review the terms
and language at a regular interval, and some updating of the indemnity and other legal
language.

The terms under which the Tualatin Municipal Court processes citations for traffic violations, as
well as violations of the charter or ordinances of Durham, remain the same. 

Attachments: Resolution No. 5288-16



RESOLUTION NO. 5288-16  Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  5288-16  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE MUNICIPAL COURT 
SERVICES TO THE CITY OF DURHAM. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin is a public body engaged in providing municipal 

services, including public safety, to its citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Durham is a public body engaged in providing municipal 

services to its citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 et. seq. authorizes the City of Tualatin and City of 

Durham to enter into an intergovernmental agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin and City of Durham mutually agree that the City 

of Tualatin will provide Municipal Court Services to the City of Durham; 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to execute the Intergovernmental 
Agreement to provide municipal court services to the City of Durham, which is set forth 
in Exhibit A and is incorporated by reference. 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of July, 2016. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
BY_________________________ 
                 City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN OREGON 
 
BY_________________________ 
            Mayor 
 
ATTEST 

 
BY_________________________  
                  City Recorder 
 

 

 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TUALATIN AND 
CITY OF DURHAM FOR COURT SERVICES 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin is a public body engaged in providing municipal 
services, including public safety, to its citizens; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Durham is a public body engaged in providing municipal 
services to its citizens; and  

WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 et. seq. authorizes the City of Tualatin and City of 
Durham to enter into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin and City of Durham previously entered into an 
IGA in 2010 related to municipal court services and wish to have this IGA supersede the 
2010 IGA; and 

WHEREAS, ORS 221.355 authorizes the City of Tualatin to provide municipal 
court services to the City of Durham; 

WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin and City of Durham mutually agree to this IGA for 
Municipal Court Services; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Term.  The term of this agreement will begin upon acceptance and 
approval by resolution by both City of Durham and City of Tualatin City Councils and will 
expire on June 30, 2021, unless terminated sooner as provided under the terms of this 
IGA.  

Section 2. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is for Tualatin to furnish 
municipal court services to Durham, as specifically set forth in this Agreement.  

Section 3.  Services Provided. 

A. The City of Tualatin will provide municipal court services to Durham. The 
Tualatin Municipal Court Judge will have all judicial jurisdiction, authority, 
powers, functions and duties of the municipal court of Durham with respect to 
all and any violations of the charter or ordinances of Durham. The exercise of 
jurisdiction under such an agreement by a municipal judge shall not constitute 
the holding of more than one office. 

Exhibit "A" - Resolution No. 5288-16



 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR COURT SERVICES 
BETWEEN TUALATIN AND DURHAM 

2 of 5 

B. Nothing in this Agreement provides legal services of any nature. If Durham 
wishes to prosecute any violation, such prosecution must be provided by 
Durham. 

 
Section 4. Proceeds Of Fines. In exchange for the City of Tualatin providing the 
services, the disbursement of fines will be as follows: 
 

A. Traffic. 100% of the proceeds from fines collected by Tualatin for traffic 
violations will be retained by Tualatin; 

 
B. Durham Charter or Ordinances. Violations of the Durham Municipal Code 

occurring within the corporate limits of Durham will be split with 90% being 
paid to Durham and 10% being retained by Tualatin. 

 
C. State Requirements. The proceeds provided in Subsection A and B above are 

net of any requirements in ORS 153.640 (Disposition of fines for traffic 
offenses) to 153.680 (Costs),  

 
 
Section 5. Municipal Judge.  For time spent adjudicating violations of Durham Charter 
or Ordinances, Durham will pay Tualatin the current rate of pay for the judge based on 
Tualatin’s adopted salary schedule, for a minimum of one hour of adjudication and 
rounded to the nearest half-hour. If the judge hears both one or more Durham cases 
and one or more Tualatin cases within an hour, each party will pay for one-half hour’s 
time. 
 
Section 6.  Independent Contract And Administrative Responsibility. 
 

A.  Employees of City of Tualatin. City of Tualatin will have full authority and 
responsibility over hiring, training, discipline, scheduling, and assignment 
of personnel assigned to perform and to supervise services provided 
under this Agreement.  City of Tualatin will have full discretion and 
authority to assign priority service among conflicting service demands at 
any given time.  

 
B. Subcontracting. City of Tualatin may contract to provide services to other 

agencies in its discretion, but it may not subcontract services provided to 
Durham without Durham’s express written consent. 

 
C. Independent Contract Relationship. Tualatin through its officers, 

employees, and agents, will provide the services described in this 
Agreement as an independent contractor, and nothing herein will be 
interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer/employee, principal/agent, partnership, joint venture, 
association, or any other type of legal or business relationship between 
the Tualatin and Durham.  No party or its employees is entitled to 



 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR COURT SERVICES 
BETWEEN TUALATIN AND DURHAM 

3 of 5 

participate in a pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits 
provided by any other party. 

 
D. The City of Durham has no right to direct or control the manner or method 

by which Tualatin provides the services that Tualatin agrees to provide 
through this Agreement. 

 
Section 7.  Other Terms And Conditions. 
 

A. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution, laws 
of the State of Oregon regarding units of local government and subject to the 
monetary limits of ORS 30.260 – 30.300, each party agrees to indemnify, defend 
and hold the other harmless from any liability claim or injury arising from that 
party’s acts or omissions in connection with the performance of this Agreement. 
Each party shall give the other immediate written notice of any action or suit filed 
or any claim made against that party that may result in litigation in any way 
related to this agreement.  
 

B. Insurance: Each party agrees to maintain insurance levels or self-insurance in 
accordance with the Oregon Tort Claims Act for the duration of this Agreement at 
levels necessary to protect the public body from liability. 
 

C. Compliance with Applicable Law. Both parties agree to comply with all federal, 
state, county and local laws, ordinances, and regulations applicable to the work 
to be done under this contract. Failure or neglect on the part of the other party to 
comply with any or all such laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations shall not 
relieve the other party of its obligations or requirements under this contract. 
 

D. Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be held responsible for delay or default 
caused by fire, riot, acts of God and war which are beyond its reasonable control. 
The affected party shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or 
eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon cessation of the cause, 
diligently pursue performance of its obligation under the contract. 
 

E. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Oregon, without resort to any jurisdiction’s conflicts 
of law rules and doctrines. Any litigation between the City of Tualatin and the City 
of Durham that arises out of or relates to performance of this Agreement shall 
occur, if in the state courts, in the Washington County Circuit Court. 
 

F. Severability. If any term or provision of this contract is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the 
remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the contract did 
not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 
 



 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR COURT SERVICES 
BETWEEN TUALATIN AND DURHAM 

4 of 5 

G. Waiver. The failure of a party to enforce any provision of this contract against the 
other party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision or any other provision. 
 

H. Notices. All notices regarding this Agreement should be sent to the parties at the 
following addresses: 

 
To :   City of Tualatin 

   Don Hudson, Finance Director  
   18880 SW Martinazzi Avenue 

Tualatin, OR 97062 
503.691.3050 
dhudson@ci.tualatin.or.us 

 
To: City of Durham 

   Linda Tate, City Administrator   
   17160 SW Upper Boones Ferry Road 

Durham, OR 97224 
503.639.6851 
cityofdurham@comcast.net 

  
Section 8.  Merger and Termination of 2010 Agreement.  This agreement constitutes 
the entire agreement between the parties.  There are no understandings, agreements, 
or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this agreement.  By 
entering into this IGA, the parties hereby terminate the 2010 IGA between the parties for 
municipal court services. 
 
Section 9.  Modifications Of Agreement.  Modifications to this Agreement are valid 
only if made in writing and signed by all parties. No amendment, consent, or waiver of 
terms of this agreement shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by both 
parties.  Any such amendment, consent, or waiver shall be effective only in the specific 
instance and for the specific purpose given.   
 
Section 10. Termination.  Either party may terminate the agreement upon the giving of 
no fewer than 120 days prior written notice to the other party of the intent to terminate.   
 
Section 11.  Breach; Default; Disputes.  If a Party breaches a covenant in this IGA, 
the non-breaching Party may seek all remedies available at law or equity or may revoke 
this IGA upon giving thirty (30) days’ written notice of the alleged breach.  If the breach 
is not cured within that time, the non-breaching party may send a second notice 
terminating this IGA immediately, and the IGA will be terminated unless the disputing 
parties request dispute resolution in writing. Upon notice of a desire for dispute 
resolution the following process will apply: 
 

A. City Manager of Tualatin and Administrator of Durham will meet in an effort to 
resolve the matter within 30 days of the notice.  
 



 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR COURT SERVICES 
BETWEEN TUALATIN AND DURHAM 

5 of 5 

B. If resolution is unsuccessful, then within ten (10) days any party may request 
mediation.  If the parties cannot agree on a mediator, they will use a mediator 
selected by the Presiding Judge of the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for 
Washington County. Mediation will be concluded within sixty (60) days unless 
the disputing party agrees to a different schedule.  If resolved, a written 
agreement shall be executed and approved by the appropriate decision 
maker. 
 

C. If mediation is unsuccessful, within fifteen (15) days, any party may seek any 
legal or equitable remedy in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for 
Washington County. 

 
D. If any suit, action, arbitration, mediation or other proceeding is instituted to 

enforce rights or otherwise pursue, defend, or litigate issues related to this 
IGA, or any other controversy arises from this IGA and regardless of any 
statute to the contrary, each party will bear its own attorneys fees and costs.  
The award of costs and expenses on appeal from a judgment entered after 
trial will be to the prevailing party designated as such by the appeals court. 

 
Section 12.  Signatures. The parties, by their signatures below, acknowledge having 
read this agreement, understand it, have authority to bind their respective governments, 
and agree to be bound by its terms and conditions. As evidence of their intent to make 
their contract, the parties’ duly authorized representatives have signed this Agreement 
on the dates noted by their signature below. 
 
 
 
          CITY OF TUALATIN 
 
BY ___________________________    
      SHERILYN LOMBOS          Date 
      City Manager 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
BY _______________________  
           Tualatin City Attorney  

         CITY OF DURHAM  
 
BY ___________________________   
      GERY SHIRADO                 Date 
      Mayor 
 

 
      



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Kathy Kaatz, Program Coordinator
Jerald Postema, Public Works Director

DATE: 07/11/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5286-16 Authorizing an Intergovernmental
Agreement with Metro for Participation with the Regional Illegal Dumping (RID)
Patrol

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The City of Tualatin currently utilizes an Intergovernmental Agreement with outside agencies to
increase efficiency and productivity in completing maintenance tasks.  The City would like to
enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Metro. Metro's Regional Illegal Dumping (RID)
patrol tackles the problem of illegal dumping on public property.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council consider and approve Resolution 5286-16 authorizing participation
with the Intergovernmental Agreement with Metro. Participation with the RID program reduces
time for doing cleanups, saves on the expenses of conducting cleanups on public property by
City staff and eliminates safety concerns with both staff and the public.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Metro's Rid Program addresses the problem of illegal dump sites on public property in multiple
ways; cleaning up dump sites in a timely manner, investigation of evidence found at the dump
sites, issuing citations to the guilty parties and working with law enforcement agencies and
communities that need education and help reduce dumping in their neighborhoods.

Illegal dumps diminish the quality of life and livability of the region. Dumps can pollute local
waterways and groundwater or cause injury to the Public. This IGA would allow the City of
Tualatin to work closely with Metro to assure that illegal dump sites are thoroughly cleaned up
and investigated. Metro provides illegal dump cleanup services on publicly owned land and will
also assist private owners with investigation of illegal dumps on private property.

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:



Not participating with Metro on illegal dump sites will require City staff to complete these
cleanups as needed. 

Attachments: Reso 5286 - RID Metro
2 - A RID IGA 2016



 

RESOLUTION NO. 5286-16  Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  5286-16  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH METRO TO PARTICIPATE IN 
THE REGIONAL ILLEGAL DUMPING PATROL 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin is a public body engaged in providing municipal 

services, including public safety, to its citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 et. seq. authorizes the City of Tualatin to enter into 

an intergovernmental agreement with Metro; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Tualatin wishes to enter into an intergovernmental 

agreement with Metro to participate in the Regional Illegal Dumping Patrol program; 
  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to execute the Intergovernmental 
Agreement with Metro, which is set forth in Exhibit A and is incorporated by reference, 
and further authorized to make administrative modifications thereto. 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of July, 2016. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
BY_________________________ 
                 City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN OREGON 
 
BY_________________________ 
            Mayor 
 
ATTEST 

 
BY_________________________  
                  City Recorder 
 

 

 



Metro Contract No. 934130 

City of Tualatin/Metro IGA  Page 1 of 6 
Metro Contract No. 934130 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made pursuant to the authority found in ORS 190.003-190.030 
between City of Tualatin (hereinafter the AGENCY) and METRO. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY is a political subdivision of the state of Oregon and is a unit of 
local government authorized to enter into intergovernmental agreements pursuant to ORS 
190.010, et seq; and 

 
WHEREAS, METRO is a municipal corporation formed and operating under ORS 

Chapter 268 and the Metro Charter, and is a unit of local government authorized to enter into 
intergovernmental agreements pursuant to ORS 190.003-190.030; and 

 
WHEREAS, the AGENCY desires to contract with METRO to remove (clean up) solid 

waste at camping sites established by homeless individuals on public property (campsite), to be 
performed by inmate work crews supervised and provided under contract to METRO by the 
Multnomah County Sheriff’s Office (MCSO) and the Oregon Department of Corrections 
(ODOC); and 

 
WHEREAS, METRO, through the MCSO and ODOC inmate work crews, is able and 

prepared to provide the services required by the AGENCY under the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement; therefore, 

 
IN CONSIDERATION of those mutual promises and the terms and conditions set forth 

below, and pursuant to the provisions of ORS 190.003-190.030, the parties agree to be bound 
as follows: 
 
CLEAN UP OF CAMPSITES  
 
1. The representatives of the AGENCY, which are set forth in Attachment A, are authorized to 

submit written requests to METRO for METRO to clean up  campsites. Attachment A may 
be amended from time to time by the parties without the need to amend this IGA. To amend 
Attachment A, AGENCY’s City Manager, or designee, will send written or electronic notice of 
the updated names to METRO. 
 

2. The AGENCY must post notice of the impending cleanup and follow all other procedures set 
forth in ORS 203.077, 203.079, and 377.653 before METRO arrives to clean up a campsite. 
If the quantity of solid waste at a site is substantial, METRO may, at its own discretion, 
require the AGENCY to provide one or more drop boxes at the site at the AGENCY’S 
expense in order for the cleanup to proceed. If a drop box is necessary, METRO will notify 
the AGENCY about the drop box requirement after the AGENCY submits the required form 
and schedules the cleanup date.  

  



Metro Contract No. 934130 

City of Tualatin/Metro IGA  Page 2 of 6 
Metro Contract No. 934130 

3. The AGENCY must submit all requests for METRO to clean up campsites in writing, using 
forms provided by METRO and substantially similar to Exhibit A to this Agreement. The 
AGENCY must submit the forms to METRO’s Solid Waste Compliance and Cleanup 
Division no less than three days prior to the posting date to ensure METRO availability on 
the proposed cleanup date. 

 
4. The AGENCY is responsible for assuring that campsites are vacated prior to the scheduled 

METRO cleanups. The AGENCY is responsible for determining and identifying what 
qualifies as “personal property” at the campsite as that term is defined in ORS 203.079. 

 
5. METRO will clean up campsites as requested by the AGENCY provided that the AGENCY 

makes a written request under Paragraph 3 of this Agreement and provides all information 
METRO requires. A representative from the AGENCY must be present at the time of the 
cleanup unless other arrangements are agreed upon by both METRO and the AGENCY. If a 
representative is not present, METRO has no obligation to proceed with the clean up at the 
campsite. At the time of the cleanup, METRO will collect all items the AGENCY identifies as 
personal property and deliver them to the AGENCY for storage at the following location (see 
ORS 203.079(1)(d)).  

 
___Tualatin Police Department_____________ 
 
___8650 SW Tualatin Road________________ 
 
___Tualatin, Oregon 97062________________ 

 
 
6. METRO may determine that the conditions at a campsite are too unsafe to complete the 

cleanup. 
 

(a) The cleanup of campsites containing known or suspected hazardous materials is 
beyond the scope, skill, training, and experience of the MCSO supervised inmate work 
crews that are contracted by METRO to clean up campsites. METRO-contracted inmate 
work crews will not clean up any campsite where known or suspected hazardous 
materials are present. In the event a METRO-contracted inmate work crew discovers 
known or suspected hazardous materials at a campsite, the work crew supervisor must 
immediately cease cleaning up until the appropriate hazardous materials authority 
inspects the site and declares or makes it safe. 

 
(b) METRO will not clean up campsites in which METRO determines, in its sole discretion, 

that conditions are unsafe. If a METRO-contracted inmate work crew discovers unsafe 
conditions at a campsite (including without limitation, difficult terrain, traffic safety 
issues, or the presence of homeless individuals), the work crew will immediately cease 
cleaning up until the site is inspected and the work crew supervisor determines that the 
site is safe to clean up. 

 
(c) METRO will promptly notify the AGENCY of any campsite that METRO determines is 

too unsafe to clean up.   
 
 



Metro Contract No. 934130 

City of Tualatin/Metro IGA  Page 3 of 6 
Metro Contract No. 934130 

CONTRACT COSTS 
 

7. METRO is responsible for the costs it incurs in the performance of its responsibilities 
described in Paragraph 5 of this Agreement and for all other costs related to this Agreement 
that METRO directly incurs.  The AGENCY is responsible for all costs it incurs in the 
performance of its responsibilities of this Agreement and for all other costs related to this 
Agreement that the AGENCY directly incurs. 

 
 

INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY 
 

8. Up to the limits of the Oregon Tort Claims Act and subject to limitations in the Oregon 
Constitution, the AGENCY agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless METRO and 
METRO’s officers, employees, contractors, and agents from all claims, suits, actions, and 
expenses of any nature resulting from, arising out of, or regarding: 

 
(a) the acts, errors, or omissions of the AGENCY and its officers, employees, inmate work 

crews and agents, and METRO and its officers, employees, contractors and agents, 
acting pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; and 

 
(b) any actual, alleged, or implied failure of the AGENCY, METRO, and the AGENCY’s and 

METRO’s officers, employees, or agents, to comply with the provisions of ORS 203.077 
and 203.079, specifically including, but not limited to, a failure to properly post a 
removal notice or to accurately identify personal property at a campsite. 

 
 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
9. If a claim, controversy, or dispute arises out of this Agreement, the complaining party must 

give written notification to the other party of the nature of the claim and the remedy 
requested within 10 days of the incident that forms the basis of the dispute. 

 
10. The laws of the state of Oregon govern this Agreement. The parties agree to resolve all 

claims, controversies or disputes that arise out of this Agreement by arbitration in 
accordance with the arbitration rules of the Arbitration Service of Portland. The arbitration 
must take place in Portland, Oregon, unless the Parties mutually agree to another location.  
Any judgment upon the award rendered pursuant to the arbitration may be entered in any 
court having jurisdiction thereof. 

 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
 
11. METRO designates its Property and Environmental Services Department Director or 

designee to represent METRO in all matters pertaining to this Agreement. 
 
12. Except as provided in paragraphs 3 and 6(c), any notice or notices provided for by this 

Agreement or by law to be given or served upon either party must be given or served by 
certified letter, deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to: 

  



Metro Contract No. 934130 

City of Tualatin/Metro IGA  Page 4 of 6 
Metro Contract No. 934130 

For the AGENCY  For METRO 

 
__Sherilyn Lombos _____________       Roy W. Brower_________________________ 

__City Manager              Solid Waste Compliance and Cleanup Director 
__ City of Tualatin ________________       METRO_______________________________ 

__18880 SW Martinazzi Ave ______       600 NE Grand Avenue___________________ 
__Tualatin, OR 97062        _________       Portland, OR 97232_____________________ 
 
 
CONTRACT TERM, MODIFICATION, TERMINATION AND OTHER STANDARD 
PROVISIONS 
 
13. This Agreement is effective beginning on the day it is fully executed by both parties and 

continues in effect through June 30, 2021, unless extended by written amendments signed 
by authorized representatives of both parties. 

 
14. Either party to this Agreement may terminate the Agreement for any reason or no reason at 

all by giving the other party not less than 30 days written notice.  
 
15. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. This Agreement may 

only be amended by written agreement of the parties. Any amendment to this Agreement 
becomes effective after it is signed by authorized representatives of both METRO and the 
AGENCY. 

 
16. All terms and conditions necessary to be inserted into public contracts in the state of 

Oregon are hereby incorporated as if such provisions were a part of this Agreement. 
Specifically, it is a condition of this Agreement that the AGENCY and all employers 
working under this Agreement are subject employers that will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 
17. The AGENCY may not assign, delegate, or subcontract any of its responsibilities under 

this Agreement without prior written consent from METRO.  
 
18. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision of this Agreement is 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement is valid and enforceable to the 
full extent of the law. 

 
19. This Agreement does not vest in any third party any rights, nor is it enforceable by any third 

party in any legal, equitable, or administrative proceeding whatsoever. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
appointed officers on the date written below. 

 
 

AGENCY:    City of Tualatin          METRO 
 
 
By:  By:  
      Paul Slyman, Director  
   Property and Environmental Services  



Metro Contract No. 934130 

City of Tualatin/Metro IGA  Page 5 of 6 
Metro Contract No. 934130 

 
Date:  Date:  
 
 
By:  
  

 
Date:  

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
AGENCY Attorney Metro Attorney 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Sean Brady   Shane Abma   
      City Attorney  Senior Metro Attorney 
 
Date:  Date:   
 
M:\rem\regaff\confidential\rawsons\Contracts\Camp\Tualatin\TualatinCampIGA2016.docx    
 
  

file://tual-Data/Operations/rem/regaff/confidential/rawsons/Contracts/Camp/Tualatin/TualatinCampIGA2016.docx


Metro Contract No. 934130 

City of Tualatin/Metro IGA  Page 6 of 6 
Metro Contract No. 934130 

ATTACHMENT A  

CITY OF TUALATIN IGA WITH METRO FOR CAMPSITE CLEANUP 

 

Name:  Tom Steiger __________  Signature:         

Title:     Park Manager   

Phone: 503.691.3085__              Email:        tSteiger@ci.tualatin.or.us ___________  

 

Name:  Bert Olheiser_________   Signature:         

Title:     Street/Sewer/Storm Manager 

Phone: 503.691.3096___              Email:        bolheiser@ci.tualatin.or.us   

 
Name:  Greg Pickering________  Signature:         

Title:     Police Captain   

Phone: 503.691.4858__              Email:        gpickering@ci.tualatin.or.us    
 

Name:  Mark Gardner________   Signature:         

Title:     Police Captain   

Phone: 503.691.4841__              Email:        mgardner@ci.tualatin.or.us    

mailto:tSteiger@ci.tualatin.or.us
mailto:bolheiser@ci.tualatin.or.us
mailto:gpickering@ci.tualatin.or.us
mailto:mgardner@ci.tualatin.or.us


TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 07/11/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Interrobang
LLC

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve a new liquor license application for Interrobang LLC.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council approve endorsement of the liquor license
application for Interrobang LLC.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Interrobang LLC has submitted a new liquor license application under the category of Winery.
They must principally produce wine or cider in Oregon. They can manufacture, store, and
export wine and cider. This allows for the sale and service of malt beverages, wine, and cider for
off-site consumption. The business is located at 12085 SW Myslony. The application is in
accordance with provisions of Ordinance No.680-85 which established a procedure for review of
liquor licenses by the Council. Ordinance No. 680-85 establishes procedures for liquor license
applicants. Applicants are required to fill out a City application form, from which a review by the
Police Department is conducted, according to standards and criteria established in Section 6 of
the ordinance. The Police Department has reviewed the new liquor license application and
recommended approval. According to the provisions of Section 5 of Ordinance No. 680-85 a
member of the Council or the public may request a public hearing on any of the liquor license
requests. If such a public hearing request is made, a hearing will be scheduled and held on the
license. It is important that any request for such a hearing include reasons for said hearing.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
A fee has been paid by the applicant.

Attachments: Attachment A - Vicinity Map
Attachment B- License Types
Attachment C- Application





Interrobang LLC - 12085 SW Myslony St

I

_̂
Interrobang LLC

S
W

118th
Ave

Attachment A
 Vicinity Map

SW Myslony St

S
W

124th
Ave

SW Herman Rd

S
W

112th
Ave



 

 

OREGON LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 
LICENSE TYPES 

 
FULL ON-PREMISES SALES 

• Commercial Establishment 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location (this is the license that most “full-service” restaurants obtain). Sell malt beverages 
for off-site consumption in securely covered containers provided by the customer. Food 
service required. Must purchase distilled liquor only from an Oregon liquor store, or from 
another Full On- Premises Sales licensee who has purchased the distilled liquor from an 
Oregon liquor store.  

• Caterer 
Allows the sale of distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider by the drink to individuals 
at off-site catered events. Food service required. 

• Passenger Carrier 
An airline, railroad, or tour boat may sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, 
and cider for consumption on the licensed premises. Food service required.  

• Other Public Location 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location, where the predominant activity is not eating or drinking (for example an 
auditorium; music, dance, or performing arts facility; banquet or special event 
facility; lodging  fairground; sports stadium; art gallery; or a convention, exhibition, or 
community center). Food service required.  

• Private Club 
Sell and serve distilled spirits, malt beverages, wine, and cider for consumption at that 
location, but only for members and guests. Food service required.  

 
LIMITED ON-PREMISES SALES 

Sell and serve malt beverages, wine, and cider for onsite consumption. Allows the sale of malt 
beverages in containers (kegs) for off-site consumption. Sell malt beverages for off-site 
consumption in securely covered containers provided by the customer.  

 
OFF-PREMISES SALES 

Sell factory-sealed containers of malt beverages, wine, and cider at retail to individuals in 
Oregon for consumption off the licensed premises. Eligible to provide sample tastings of malt 
beverages, wine, and cider for consumption on the premises. Eligible to ship manufacturer-
sealed containers of malt beverages, wine, or cider directly to an Oregon resident. 
 

BREWERY PUBLIC HOUSE 
Make and sell malt beverages. Import malt beverages into and export from Oregon. Distribute 
malt beverages directly to retail and wholesale licensees in Oregon. Sell malt beverages made 
at the business to individuals for consumption on or off-site. 

 
WINERY 

Must principally produce wine or cider in Oregon. Manufacture, store, and export wine and 
cider. Import wine or cider If bottled, the brand of wine or cider must be owned by the licensee. 
Sell wine and cider to wholesale and retail licensees in Oregon. Sell malt beverages, wine, and 
cider to individuals in Oregon for consumption on or off-site. 









TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Janet Newport, Human Resources Manager

DATE: 07/11/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5281-16  Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Tualatin Police Officers
Association

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The City Council is respectfully requested to adopt Resolution No. 5281-16  authorizing the City
Manager to execute a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Tualatin Police Officers
Association. (TPOA).  This is a three-year agreement, which will be retroactively effective to
July 1, 2016 and be in effect until June 30, 2019.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached Resolution.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
There is a 2.0% cost of living adjustment to TPOA classification pay ranges in each year of the
contract, with an overall update to the salary schedule to a seven (7) step plan from an eight (8)
step plan.  In addition, a new longevity structure is established and an update to the
Certification Incentive percentages. There is a change in one of the health care plan options,
with a continuation of the current calculation format of the City's tiered monthly contribution
toward the cost of health insurance premium rates, and an updated City-paid life insurance plan
consistent with what is provided to all other employees in the City. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Provisions for adjustments to the economic terms of the collective bargaining agreement
between the City of Tualatin and the Tualatin Police Officers Association for the first year of the
bargaining agreement are incorporated in the FY 2016-17 budget, and the costs associated
with the second and third year of the agreement will be allocated to that fiscal year's budget.

Attachments: Reso 5281-16 - TPOA Contract



RESOLUTION NO. 5281-16  Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  5281-16  

A RESOLUTION AUTORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH THE TUALATIN POLICE 
OFFICERS ASSOCIATION. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is the authority in authorizing the execution of 

collective bargaining agreements (CBA) between the City of Tualatin and the Tualatin 
Police Officers Association (TPOA); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and TPOA previously negotiated and executed a CBA that 

was in effect until June 30, 2016; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and TPOA negotiated a new successor CBA, which 
agreement term begins July 1, 2016 and ends June 30, 2019; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes that it is in the best interest of the City to 

approve the new CBA with TPOA. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 

 
Section 1.  The Council approves the CBA between the City and the Tualatin 

Police Officers Association for the term July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019. 
 
Section 2.  The Council authorizes the City Manager to execute the CBA. 
 
Section 3.  This resolution is effective upon adoptions. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of July, 2016. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
BY_________________________ 
                 City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN OREGON 
 
BY_________________________ 
            Mayor 
 
ATTEST 

 
BY_________________________  
                  City Recorder 
 

 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Tanya Williams, Assistant to the City Manager

DATE: 07/11/2016

SUBJECT: Tualatin City Hall Decision on Next Steps 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Council will provide direction on the next steps for a Tualatin City Hall Facility.

RECOMMENDATION:
At Council's direction, staff and a consultant team has carried out items from a public
involvement plan relating to the alternatives for a new Civic Center and expanded Library
through the months of May and June. At the June 27, 2016 City Council Work Session, the
results of the public involvement efforts were shared with Council members. At this time,
Council should consider whether or not to place a ballot measure to fund a new Civic Center
and expanded Library on the November 2016 ballot. The deadline to place a measure on the
November 8 general election is August 8, 2016. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
In 2014, the City conducted a City Facilities Study to assess current facilities and analyze future
needs in a proposed new city hall and library expansion. Following a comprehensive outreach
process, eight sites were identified. In 2015, following direction from Council, these sites were
narrowed down based on research and conducting due diligence. A set of three alternatives
was identified. One proposed site was  a two story building, next to the current Police
department and the other two were on one site on the Tualatin commons. These two
alternatives consisted of a two story and a three story building.

In April of 2016, the Council was presented with these three alternatives to consider for a future
Civic Center and expanded library. Following this presentation, Council directed staff to proceed
in developing a public involvement plan to gauge community interest and support for two
proposed alternative sites; these included the Police Department site and the three story
alternative on the Tualatin commons.  The proposed public involvement plan was designed to
target specific demographics and segments of Tualatin that would reflect our entire community.
Throughout the months of May and June, City staff and consultants have carried out the
components of this plan and have feedback from the community to share with the Council in the
attached public involvement report.

At the June 27, 2016 Council Work Session, staff shared the results of the public involvement



efforts in the public involvement report. This included results from community events, social
media, a statistically valid survey, an online survey, attending advisory committees, hosting an
open house, and a variety of direct mail and email marketing campaigns.

Attachments: Report
PowerPoint



 
 

 
 
 

!
!
!
!

!
!

Prepared by:  

Civic Center and Library Expansion 
Public Involvement Report 

June 24, 2016 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 2 

Table of Contents 

03 Acknowledgements

04 Executive Summary 

06 Project Background

08 Public Involvement Summary 

19 Appendix A: Public Involvement Plan 

29 Appendix B: Fact Sheet(s) 

33 Appendix C: Posters 

36 Appendix D: News Articles 

39 Appendix E: DHM Research Report 

65 Appendix F: Online Survey Report 

74 Appendix G: Focus Group Summary Report 

86 Appendix H: Direct Mail Letter 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report  3 

Acknowledgements 
	
City of Tualatin 
	
City Council 
Mayor Lou Ogden 
Council President Monique Beikman 
Councilor Wade Brooksby 
Councilor Frank Bubenik 
Councilor Joelle Davis 
Councilor Nancy Grimes 
Councilor Ed Truax 
	
	
City Staff 
 
Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager 
Tanya Williams, Assistant to the City Manager 
	
Consultants 
	
J Robertson and Company 
Sara Singer, Vice President 
	
	 	



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report  4 

Executive Summary 
!
In April 2016, the City Council was presented with various alternatives to consider for a future 
Civic Center and expanded Library. The Council requested staff hire a consultant to assist with 
engaging the community in a discussion regarding these alternatives and determine the level of 
community support for the different alternatives. J Robertson and Company designed a public 
involvement plan based on the direction provided by the Tualatin City Council and staff. Our 
team worked closely with city staff to design activities and outreach tools to reach the broader 
Tualatin population. The purpose of this outreach is to provide the Council with the 
information needed to decide whether or not to place a ballot measure on the November 2016 
ballot for a new Civic Center and expanded Library. The deadline to place a measure on the 
November 8 general election is August 8, 2016.  
 
As part of the Council’s 2015 goal setting process, the Council outlined their decision-making 
process and the various data points needed for making a decision (see Figure 1). This report 
serves as one of the data points for council consideration. A public involvement plan was 
presented to the Council on April 25, 2016, and the activities outlined in the plan were carried 
out from May through June and have been summarized in this report.  

 
Figure 1 Tualatin City Council decision-making process 

The public outreach presented two alternatives for the community to consider including a two-
story building next to the Tualatin Police Department and a three-story building on the 
Tualatin Commons. Both of these alternatives included the expansion of the Tualatin Library 
into the existing City Office Space.  
 
Overall, the outreach efforts reached an estimated 32,000 people in the community using a 
wide variety of tools and communication channels. The results varied depending on the tool 
used and the visuals available, but a majority of people engaged in direct conversation at 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report  5 

community events, meetings or focus groups seemed in favor of expanding the Tualatin 
Library. Regarding the alternatives for a new Civic Center, a majority of people engaged in 
direct conversation at community events or in-person meetings favored the three-story 
building on the Tualatin Commons versus the alternative for the two-story building next to the 
Tualatin Police Department. In the phone survey conducted by DHM Research and the online 
survey conducted by the City, the people surveyed were split on whether or not they support a 
new Civic Center and expanded Library, and a majority of the people surveyed preferred the 
Civic Center alternative next to the Police Department.  
 
This report includes background information about the project, as well as a summary of the 
public outreach results. Each public outreach tool is a separate data point for the Council to 
consider as they evaluate the information. Different outreach tools have varying benefits and 
constraints which should be factored when considering the value of each data point.		 	



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report  6 

Project Background 
!
In 2014, Tualatin conducted a City Facilities Study to assess Tualatin’s existing facilities, 
analyze future space needs and identify alternatives for a future city hall and library expansion. 
A comprehensive public outreach process was launched and the community identified eight 
sites to consider for a future city hall and two options for library expansion. In 2015, the City 
Council reviewed the study and directed City staff to complete a due diligence process on a 
narrowed set of alternatives. This process refined cost estimates and analyzed traffic impacts 
for the alternatives. In April 2016, staff and consultants presented three alternatives for a 
future Civic Center and expanded Library/Community space, refined cost estimates for each 
alternative and information regarding a potential bond measure. The Tualatin Council directed 
staff to proceed with the development of a public involvement plan to gauge community 
interest and support for a November ballot measure for a Civic Center and expanded Library. 
The alternatives presented to the Council in April included two alternatives on the Tualatin 

Commons, a two-story building and a three-story building, and a two-story alternative next to 
the Tualatin Police Department. Staff and consultants also presented information regarding 
the Library expansion and renovation and the associated costs.  
 
It was decided to take two alternatives out to the community for further consideration. A 
three-story Civic Center on the Tualatin Commons (see figure 2) would meet the City’s space 
needs and would provide additional retail and office space. The total bond request for the 
three-story building and Library expansion is $32.1 million and includes construction, design, 
land acquisition, contingencies, and financing costs. This total cost does not take any rental 
revenue into consideration. A two-story Civic Center next to the Tualatin Police Department 

!"#$%&'(')'*+%&&,-*.%/'0"1"2'0&3*&%'.3'*+&'4$565*"3'0.77.3-'8.$69'7&&*'*+&'0"*/:-'-;52&'3&&9-'539'8.$69';%.1"9&'599"*".356'%&*5"6'
539'.<<"2&'-;52&=='



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 7 

(see Figure 3) would meet the City’s space needs out to 2025. The total bond request for the 
two-story building and Library expansion is $24.3 million and includes construction, design, 
contingencies, and financing costs. 

Over the course of the study and during the outreach period, questions were raised regarding 
other Cities’ experiences in constructing a new Civic Center with additional leasable space. 
Questions were also raised regarding how much additional income could be generated if the 
City were to lease space to retail businesses or other agencies on the Tualatin Commons. 

One example of another City who leases a portion of their Civic Center space is the City of 
Hillsboro. Hillsboro leases Civic Center space to three entities including the following: a 
Starbucks coffee house, which is leased out at market rates and managed by the City’s Facilities 
Division; the Washington County Museum which has exhibits and an education center, and the 
Hillsboro Parks and Recreation Department operates the Outdoors In Park at the Plaza 
featuring a playground and bouldering wall. The Museum pays a minimal amount for 
maintenance, but the City does not receive rental income.  Hillsboro staff reports that there 
had been some hope to have a restaurant in the Civic Center space but that they have not been 
able to find a tenant that could be viable. 

The Civic Center alternative on the Tualatin Commons shows an additional 13,000 square feet 
of leasable space. Currently, the market rate for office and retail space in Tualatin is $22-$26 
per square foot which includes “full service” rents. Full Service means that all utilities and 
maintenance is included in the cost.!! !

Figure 3 A two-story Civic Center next to the Tualatin Police Department would meet the City's space needs out to 2025. 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 8 

Public Involvement Summary 
The purpose of the Public Involvement Plan was to outline the intent and expectations of 
public involvement efforts in the Civic Center Outreach project to fit the needs of the public 
and the goals of the Tualatin City Council. The demographic profile of the community was 
examined to ensure that our tools reached all segments of Tualatin’s population, and the 
results would be reflective of the entire community. The plan’s objectives were to engage those 
who do not usually get involved through online platforms and at events that are family-
friendly, connect with diverse communities across Tualatin through cultural events and 
translated materials, empower youth and gather their input, build community connections 
through existing channels with the neighborhoods, businesses and city advisory committees, 
foster sustained interaction between residents and their government and engage people at 
other City sponsored events.  

Many tools were used to reach the community including those listed below: 
§ Social Media (Facebook, Twitter,

Instagram, YouTube)
§ Posters
§ Fact Sheet (English + Spanish)
§ Presentation Boards (English +

Spanish)
§ Video
§ Online Survey
§ Statistically Valid Survey
§ Open House
§ Community Events

§ Focus Groups – marketed to
volunteer network

§ Stakeholder Meetings – Advisory
Committees, CIOs, Others?

§ Newsletter Insert
§ Tualatin Life + Other Press Coverage
§ E-Blasts (City and Chamber)
§ Web Content
§ Direct Mailing to Apartment

Complexes

Below is a summary of each activity and the results and comments collected from the 
community participants:  

Advisory Committees 
Most of the City’s Advisory Committees meet monthly, and the outreach team attended at 
least one meeting for the following groups to provide a brief presentation and overview of the 
project and solicit feedback from the committee members. The City’s Advisory Committees are 
made up of residents who are very engaged in community affairs and who were mostly familiar 
with this project from previous planning efforts.  

1. Arts Advisory Committee: Our team met with the Tualatin Arts Advisory Committee
on May 17, 2016 with six members present. The group was supportive of the Commons
Site and were unanimously in favor of placing it on the November 2016 ballot. The
group said public art should be included in the new building, and they expressed great
interest in the ability to offset the costs of the bond with revenue from the
retail/commercial space. They agreed the library should be expanded.



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 9 

2. Planning Commission: Our team met with the Planning Commission on May 19 with
nine members attending. Members asked questions about the construction timeline
and the projected revenue from the leasable space on the Commons. Overall, the group
was supportive of the alternative on the Commons and expanding the Library.

3. Youth Advisory Committee (YAC): On May 26, our team presented to 13 YAC
members. They were very interested in the proposed sites and asked about anticipated
revenues from the Commons site, the timeline of the project, and the planned use for
the expanded library. Overall, they were in favor of the project and the Commons site.

4. Budget Committee: On May 31, our team presented the project and options to
members of the Budget committee. Members of the committee asked about parking
options, which city facilities would be consolidated, and the anticipated bond rates.

5. Tualatin Tomorrow Advisory Committee: Our team met with the Tualatin
Tomorrow Advisory Committee on June 1, 2016 with seven members present, as well as
five members of the public in attendance. Overall, the group was supportive of the
alternative on the Commons and expanding the Library.

6. Library Advisory Committee: Our team met with the Tualatin Library Advisory
Committee on June 7, 2016 with eight members present.  The group had a robust
discussion about the options and were very supportive of the need for an expanded
Library and of building a Civic Center.  Ultimately, they did not provide a
recommendation to the Council because they were split on which site they preferred.
There was concern expressed that if there were overruns on the Civic Center
construction that the Library expansion would suffer.

7. Parks Advisory Committee: Our team met with the Tualatin Parks Advisory
Committee on June 14, 2016 with five_ members present.  There were many good
questions and discussion focusing on the need, the differences between the options,
schedule and cost.  The group was supportive of the need but was split on which site
they preferred.  There was some concern expressed about competing with the School
District bond measure.

Neighborhood Engagement 
The CIO Officers held an all-officer meeting on May 25, 2016 with 20 people in attendance 
representing residential and commercial CIOs. The group asked about parking options, the 
option for a separate library measure, and which facilities would be consolidated in a new Civic 
Center.  

The team attended three of the CIO Annual meetings to present information and gather input: 
§ Byrom/Martinazzi on April 21 which had approximately 30 attendees.  Comments

were positive about the need and also about the Commons option.  Questions were
asked about the schedule, why the City torn down the Council Building, and cost.



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 10 

!! The Midwest CIO met on April 28 
and had approximately 15 attendees. 
Comments reflected understanding 
of the need and support of the 
Library expansion; there was a 
preference expressed for the 
Commons option.  There were 
questions about cost, and schedule as 
well as concerns about competing 
with the School District bond 
measure. 

!! The East CIO met on April 28 as well 
and provided input on the project.  

The City utilized Nextdoor, the online 
social media site for neighborhoods. A 
narrative including background information 
and the alternatives under consideration 
were posted on the site for all Tualatin 
Nextdoor users to review and comment. 

!
Business Community 
Our outreach team partnered with the 
Tualatin Chamber to share information 
about the project with the business 
community.  

A message went as part of weekly Chamber E-Newsletter, including information about the 
project and a link to the online survey. 

Staff also shared information at the Chamber’s Business Advisory Council meeting where 
people shared concerns about the putting this measure on the ballot at the same time as 
TTSD’s measure. Concerns were raised that this could be perceived as being in competition 
with the school district or people feeling voter fatigue.  

Statistically Valid Survey 
The City contracted with DHM research to conduct a statistically valid survey regarding the 
Civic Center and Library alternatives. The full report from DHM is attached; special effort was 
made to reach as many residents as possible in the City; respondents were contacted by a live 
interviewer from a list of registered, likely voters (those that have voted in 2 of the last 4 
elections).   The margin of error for this survey is +/- 7.5%, which means that there is a 95% 
probability that the sample taken for this study would fall within 7.5% (+/-) if compared with 
the results achieved from surveying the entire population.  

Figure 4 Comments from neighbors regarding a new Civic Center 
and Library on Nextdoor 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 11 

Following are some of the key findings and observations from the attached report: 
§ Tualatin voters were very positive about the direction their city is headed and were

highly satisfied with the services provided by their local government.
§ Many voters don’t know or believe that a new Civic Center is necessary.
§ A strong majority of voters see the value of a Civic Center in Tualatin, but are split on

whether to support the project.
§ Those who support the project see it as a chance to bring the community together.
§ Voters don’t respond strongly to the messages in support of a new Civic Center and

Library expansion.
§ Voters exhibit concerns about government spending and increased taxes.
§ Voters show a strong preference for the Police Facility over the Tualatin Commons.

Online Survey 
An online survey was created to reflect similar questions from the statistically valid survey to 
gauge community support and identify potential reasons residents may support or oppose the 
project. The survey was posted on the City’s website, distributed through social media 
channels, sent out through email marketing campaigns, and was distributed in paper versions 
at all of the advisory committees. In total, the online survey received 547 responses.  

Overall, 65% of respondents identified that a Tualatin Civic Center would be valuable, however, 
they were evenly split when asked if they would support the project given the costs. For the site 
next to the Police Department, 55% of survey responses indicated that they would support this 
option. Only 44% of respondents would support the Tualatin Commons site, with over 37% 
identifying that they were strongly opposed to this site. 

Similar to the DHM survey, the online survey gave respondents the option to select reasons 
why they would support or oppose the project. The fact that the city is in seven different 
locations was a very important reason to support the project for 35% of survey participants. 
For those that were opposed to the project, 65% of survey participants cited that Tualatin has 
more important priorities than building a new Civic Center and 66% cited that additional tax 
increases puts a burden on families. 

Community Events 
To reach people in the community who do not attend traditional meetings or typically engage 
with the City, our team attended several community events to engage with people and share 
information about the project.  



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 12 

On May 18, 2016, our team attended the 
opening night of the new Bridgeport 
Farmers Market and talked with 60 people 
who shared a general preference for the 
alternative on the Tualatin Commons. Two 
people voiced strong opposition to both 
options and cited reasons as tearing down the 
old building and the new options were too 
expensive. Many Durham residents who also 
use the Tualatin Library stopped to view the 
renderings and voiced their support for the 
project. 

According to the demographic profile of the 
community, about 10% of Tualatin’s 
population is 65+. To reach this segment of the 
population, our team attended the Juanita 
Pohl Center Meals on Wheels Lunch on 
June 3, 2016 and talked with 25 people who 
shared a general preference for the Commons site and were strongly supportive of 
consolidating services in one location. 

Our team attended the Summer Reading Kickoff on June 1, 2016 and talked with 40 people 
who shared that they were very excited to see plans to expand the Library. Some of the people 
our team spoke with were not Tualatin residents, but they were very happy with the services 
they received from the library. Five people who we spoke with were very eager to see a new civic 
center built and favored the Tualatin Commons site, favoring the idea of “bringing energy” to 
the area. 

Our team attended the Blender Dash on 
June 4, 2016 and talked with 30 people 
who shared a general preference for the 
alternative on the Tualatin Commons. 
People shared concerns about traffic and 
parking associated with a new Civic Center. 

On Saturday, June 18, 2016, the City 
hosted a free event, Summer in the Park, 
in Stoneridge Park to target outreach 
efforts in the Latino/Hispanic 
neighborhood. Over 100 people came out to 
enjoy the free activities and food, and staff 
engaged in both Spanish and English to share 
information about the project and gather input.  



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 13 

!
Social Media 
The City utilized Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and YouTube to share information about the 
project. The charts below show the engagement numbers for the posts on Instagram and 
Facebook. The project was tweeted about seven times, but the City’s Twitter followers did not 
engage. 

!
!
!!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
Facebook Comments 
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!

Facebook Posts and Events People 
Reached 

Likes, 
Comments, 

Shares 

Link 
Clicks 

Views 

May 18, 2016 441 1 0 20 
May 19, 2016 73 0 0 1 
May 23, 2016 82 0 1 1 
May 25, 2016 468 3 0 4 
May 26, 2016 434 18 1 27 
June 2, 2016 639 26 35 74 
Event: Party in the Park 6,400 74 
Event: Open House 2,000 94 

“Heck no 
fix the 
traffic 
first”

Leasing an empty 
building in 

Tualatin(there are 
many) makes more 

sense and is 
financially more 

feasible…

Love this! 

What’s wrong with moving 
all the city offices to the 

Haggens building? There is 
plenty of parking, and it 
will cost a lot less than 
constructing another 

building that we have no 
space for…Expand the 

library into the vacated city 
offices, and FIX TRAFFIC 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report  14 

!
!
!
3 Instagram Posts generated 34 likes 
!

!
!
!
YouTube Video  
!
The YouTube video had 530 views. 
 

!
!
!
Focus Groups 
A total of 30 people participated in one of seven focus groups.  The focus group meetings lasted 
one hour and were designed to gauge people’s reactions to the statistically valid survey.  Every 
participant was given the survey and asked to fill it out with no other presentation, visuals or 
information and then the group talked about their reactions to each question once everyone 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 15 

was done. Overall, 80% of the participants support a new Civic Center and expanded Library, 
and 90% supported the alternative on the Commons.  

The majority felt like the City is moving in the right direction and had very positive things to 
say about their experience in Tualatin.  Participants expressed satisfaction with the services 
they receive.  Comments focused on frustrations with traffic, the fact that there is no real 
downtown, and the Library is too small. 

There was some confusion about what a Civic Center means; to some it means a large, multi-
use space that includes performing arts; to others, it sounded like a compound or multiple 
buildings; others knew and understood it to be synonymous with a City Hall.  There was 
general agreement that a Civic Center is a good idea, that it should downtown or central, and 
that it should be accessible. 

Generally, participants were initially supportive of a Civic Center, however, some questioned 
the need and others felt that it wasn’t the highest priority, especially given the Tigard-Tualatin 
School District (TTSD) bond measure on the November 2016 ballot.  The strongest messages in 
support were that it is very inefficient (for both employees and customers) to have City offices 
in so many different locations, and that an expanded Library would create additional space for 
high-priority needs.  When looking at the messages in opposition, the strongest message was 
about taxes going up.  

When thinking about the location, there was agreement by most that there are challenges 
associated with the Police site, primarily related to access.  The strongest reason to support the 
Police site is that it’s less expensive since the City already owns the land.  The Commons site 
was the favored option by most; participants reported that it would help create a downtown 
feel, that it would finish the development of the Commons and that it was much more 
accessible by foot and transit.  The commercial opportunities at the Commons seemed to cause 
some confusion with participants questioning the risk and what the City would do with the 
revenue. 

Open House 
On May 25, 2016, the City hosted an open house at the Tualatin Police Department to share 
information about the project and gather input. Only five people attended the event, but those 
who did generally support the project and preferred the Civic Center alternative on the 
Tualatin Commons. They expressed an interest in having a visitor’s center as part of the new 
Civic Center or expanded Library space, and they cited concerns about the traffic issues near 
the Police Department site. 

Direct Mail 
Based on Tualatin’s demographic profile, about 44% of the population rents versus owning 
their home. To ensure the outreach methods were reaching this segment of the community, a 
direct mailing was sent to 1,093 residents in Tualatin’s largest apartment complexes. This 
mailing was comprised of a letter and fact sheet in both English and Spanish.  



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 16 

The Latino/Hispanic population comprises almost 20% of Tualatin’s population, with a large 
concentration of Spanish speaking people in the Stoneridge neighborhood. The City mailed 
over 200 fact sheets in Spanish to the homes in this neighborhood to inform them about the 
project and the community event Summer in the Park as discussed previously in this report.  

Newsletter 
The City newsletter is mailed monthly to every home and business in Tualatin, reaching over 
14,000 households and businesses. In the June 2016 edition of Tualatin Today, the City 
inserted the fact sheet developed for the project into the newsletter. 

E-Blast
While the City does not have a formal e-newsletter, an e-news platform is utilized to
communicate with different groups including the Tualatin Tomorrow Partners, Library
customers and members of the City’s Advisory Committees. The City sent out e-blasts to these
groups which include over 13,000 emails.

The Tualatin Tomorrow e-blast reach 48 people, while the Library e-blast reached almost 4,500. 
The Library e-blast generated over 400 link clicks for the survey, and the video which was 
embedded in the email generated almost 600 views. 

Emails 
Several people shared emails with their comments regarding the alternatives. Below are a few 
excerpts from some of the messages received by staff. 

Be. really amazing.   thinking. a least. 20 year a head.   make it.  that way. is beautiful.  can be.  much better 

The tax increase is really pretty stiff. 

It is pathetic to see your library get more money...and throw away books!  

Computers should be an at home project...anyone can afford a Windows XP now. Monitors are $10 at Goodwill. The 
city/library should not be involved in giving every family in town access. Why should the library have video-games? That 
is not the purpose of library concept. 

The check-out-yourself must have cost a lot...probably more than an employee would. Not all change is progress. 

Going back to books: you have a fair number of RECENT fiction. Your history, literature, and math are non-existent. 

Mike PhD (History of Science) 

Some feedback on this video and presentation. While it was helpful and well done, it does not address the reason to 
expand the library and in doing so, this will be the 3rd construction project on library property in the 15 years we have 
lived here. I would support the civic center but do NOT support a library addition at this time. The survey did not allow for 
that feedback to be given. 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report  17 

Melissia 
 
It sounds fantastic. It would be a great idea for the growing Tualatin area. 
Ruth 

 
The Tualatin Historical Society Board would like to request the City to include some space in the new civic center complex 
for a small office and  display area for some of our fast expanding organization and collections.  We are starting plans for 
an Ice Age Interpretive Center in line with the branding expert Bill Baker's recommendation to enhance visitor's time 
spent in Tualatin while on vacation or business and providing jobs in restaurants, hotels, and economic development in 
the downtown area.  We need to register our interest in further cooperation in teaching the public and expanding our 
unique historical story by being included in your future plans. Currently the Heritage Center is used by City and THS as an 
events center precluding expansion and placement of future artifacts.  We have already filled up the display cases 
appropriated to us at the Library and can't take further donations for now. ( Hillsboro has had a very satisfactory 
agreement for historical floor space in the Hillsboro Civic Center but we do not need that much room.) 
  
We are working with University of Oregon Museum officials to loan ancient animal specimens found in the area for 
display.  (Example: We have found a Tualatin River Mammoth skeleton in U of O Museum storage which was donated by 
Washington County Chair Andy Duyck's father which Andy was a small child.  If it could be put together, it could be 
reconstructed like the Tualatin Mastodon.).   We have David Ellingson, Woodburn teacher and Mike Full, Fossil expert 
working with us and U of O to see what opportunities there are to display them here in Tualatin rather than down in 
Eugene. This is just one pending project that promises to make a scientific history name for the City, and Tualatin, Yamhill 
and Willamette Valleys. (Dave and Mike have provided castings for the Tualatin River Trail and for Cabelas.  PSU Professor 
Scott Burns, Tualatin resident, has provided geology and ice age floods guidance for the City Trail project and now 
consults in regard to the ice age soils for the numerous wineries in the valleys.  (All three assisted greatly on the 
Greenway Trail).  I have been able to connect a lot of people and involve a lot of professionals in expanding the interest 
in Tualatin Ice Age Floods from all over Oregon and Washington.  We have several more projects and donations pending 
in cooperation with Ice Age Trail Institute and other scientific organizations.  One archaeologist I mentored while he was 
at PSU, radio carbondated our specimens in California, and recently wrote a very technical article in a professional journal 
about our ice age animals.  He was recently been contacted by an Australian scientist regarding similar dna and species of 
our Willamette Valley ancient bison antiquess in connection with ancient bisons from Wyoming,Idaho, Yellowstone 
areas.  Just shows the serious, scientific interests, plus our local high school arts and crafts connections including casting 
of ancient animal bones.  I could go on and on.....  
  
In addition, the National Park Service recently designated Tualatin as a "loop" of the National Ice Age Geologic Trail 
adopted by 2009 federal legislation.  This would allow us to co-sign the Ice Age Tonquin Trail and other trails 
with  national signs and plan for a tourist's interpretive map  and stop at the Tualatin Heritage Center or elsewhere in the 
city, which is close to I-5 and I-205... As you might have heard, as a result of Paul Hennon and Linda Moholt going with 
me to a national ice age trail planning meeting in Wenatchee several years ago, the National Park Service has taken an 
interest in what we are doing down here and their staff has been here three times to exchange ideas, (including the 
Superintendent of Lake Roosevelt and the national Trail who entered and won a prize in Tualatin's Pumpkin Regatta last 
fall.) 
  
There is so much more.  Perhaps I can better brief you and Sara at lunch or coffee sometime soon.  I think you will be 
pleased and proud as I am.   If this email can serve as input the city has requested regarding future plans for the Civic 
Center, okay.  If not, please advise if you want us to input in a more formal way. 
  
Thank you for all you do for my hometown. 
  
Yvonne Addington, President 
Tualatin Historical Society 
 
I couldn't make it to the focus group today, and I have court tomorrow morning.  Since I am not available to attend a 
focus group, I will give you my input here, which supplements our earlier conversation re my support for the concept, but 



Civic Center and Expanded Library Public Involvement Report 18 

int the context of my concerns with the proposed November timing for the potential ballot measure in relation to IP28 
and the TTSD ballot measure/levy. 

As I have had more conversations around the community, the vast majority of parents that I have spoken with at 
school/kid functions have relayed to me that the see the proposed City ballot measure in competition with the TTSD 
ballot measure/levy and, in that context, they believe that the safety and expansion of the District's infrastructure is 
solving a greater need than the inefficiencies associated with the City's currently scattered infrastructure.  In that 
competition, those parents are going to vote for the TTSD measure and against the City measure.  The population 
expressing this view is, admittedly, biased in favor of the schools, but we cannot ignore that this population represents a 
significant part of the electorate. 

For this reason and the others I have expressed to you in the past regarding the timing of the potential City ballot 
measure, I advise delaying the proposed City measure to a future ballot.  In the interim, the City could conduct more 
outreach (particularly through the CIOs) and further develop its narrative in support of the project, especially the 
financial projections for potential revenue to be gained from the retail and office space included in the plan for the 
Commons site.       

Robert 

Press 
The project received some press coverage over the last few months including an article in the 
June edition of Tualatin Life written by our team and an article in The Times on June 1, 2016. 



Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 Page	
April	19,	2016	

2	

Appendix A: Public	Involvement	Plan	
Tualatin	Civic	Center	

1. Introduction	and	Project	Background

Proactive	and	effective	citizen	involvement	is	crucial	to	the	successful	planning	of	any	major
community	initiative.	Tualatin	residents	have	consistently	expressed	an	expectation	that	the
City	prioritize	public	engagement	to	maintain	transparency	and	encourage	participation.
The	City	of	Tualatin	provides	many	avenues	for	meaningful	citizen	involvement,	access	to
information,	and	opportunities	for	collaboration,	with	transparent	and	inclusive	public
engagement	practices.

The	City	has	been	studying	various	alternatives	for	a	future	Civic	Center	and	expanded
Library	over	the	past	two	years.	In	the	fall	of	2013,	the	City	conducted	public	outreach
regarding	transportation	improvements	related	to	the	Nyberg	Rivers	development	which
required	the	demolition	of	the	former	Council	Building	located	on	Martinazzi	Ave.	During
the	public	outreach	the	community	expressed	an	interest	in	completing	a	City	Facilities
Study	to	learn	more	about	Tualatin’s	facilities	and	future	needs	for	City	offices	and
community	meeting	spaces.		Concurrently,	during	the	update	of	the	City’s	Tualatin
Tomorrow	Vision	Plan	in	summer	of	2013,	citizens	expressed	high	interest	in	consolidating
city	services	into	one	central	facility,	expanding	library	offerings	and	providing	more
community	meeting	spaces.

In	2014,	the	City	conducted	a	Facilities	Study	to	assess	Tualatin’s	existing	facilities,	analyze
future	space	needs	and	identify	alternatives	for	a	future	city	hall	and	library	expansion.	A
comprehensive	public	outreach	process	was	launched	and	the	community	identified	eight
sites	to	consider	for	a	future	city	hall	and	two	options	for	library	expansion.	In	2015,	the	City
Council	reviewed	the	study	and	directed	City	staff	to	complete	a	due	diligence	process	on	a
narrowed	set	of	alternatives.	This	process	refined	cost	estimates	and	analyzed	traffic
impacts	for	the	alternatives.	In	April	2016,	staff	and	consultants	presented	three
alternatives	for	a	future	Civic	Center	and	expanded	Library/Community	space,	refined	cost
estimates	for	each	alternative	and	information	regarding	a	potential	bond	measure.	The
Tualatin	Council	directed	staff	to	proceed	with	the	development	of	a	public	involvement
plan	to	gauge	community	interest	and	support	for	a	November	ballot	measure	for	a	Civic
Center	and	expanded	Library.

The	purpose	of	this	Public	Involvement	Plan	(PIP)	is	to	outline	the	intent	and	expectations	of
public	involvement	efforts	in	the	Civic	Center	Outreach	project.	The	PIP	sets	forth	principles
that	guide	how	we	will	involve	the	community	in	the	project,	how	we	will	structure	the
public	involvement	program	in	a	way	that	fits	the	needs	of	the	public	and	the	goals	of	the
Tualatin	City	Council.



Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 Page	
April	19,	2016	

3	

2. Community	Overview

As	a	citywide	project,	the	public	involvement	plan	must	consider	the	demographic	profile	of	the	
entire	community.	Tualatin’s	unique	demographic	characteristics	should	be	reflected	in	the	
project’s	public	involvement	program.	

Tualatin	Community	Demographic	Summary	

Tualatin	is	currently	home	to	26,604	residents	and	10,000	households	of	various	sizes	and	
compositions.	Summarized	demographic	information	for	the	City	is	shown	below1:	

Median	Income	 Individuals	Below	the	Poverty	Level	
$65,903	(Household)	 11.9%	

Challenges		
The	demographic	differentiators	highlight	a	number	of	key	challenges	that	need	to	be	
addressed	in	the	public	involvement	plan:	

Multilingual	content:	Linguistic	barriers	will	present	a	significant	challenge	for	some	community	
members	to	participate	in	the	project.	How	can	we	deliver	content	that	addresses	language	
barriers?		

1	2010-2014	American	Community	Survey	5-Year	Estimates.	www.census.gov	
2	Population	25	years	and	over	
3	2010	Census	Data	

Age	 Education2	 Ethnicity	
Under	15	 20%	 Less	than	High	School	 8.5%	 Asian	 2.2%	
Age	15-24	 13%	 High	School	Diploma	 17.6%	 Black	 1.4%	
Age	25-44	 30%	 Some	College	 32.1%	 Hispanic	 18.5%	
Age	45-64	 28%	 Bachelor's	Degree	 29.4%	 Other	 4.6%	
Age	65+	 9%	 Graduate	Degree	 12.4%	 White	 73.3%	

Household	Size3	 Housing	Tenure	 Language	at	Home	
One	person	 25%	 Own	 56.2%	 English	Only	 81.7%	
Two	people	 33%	 Rent	 43.8%	 Other	than	English	 18.3%	
Three	people	 17%	
Four	or	more	people	 25%	



Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 Page	
April	19,	2016	

4	

Diverse	customs	and	practices:	Community	events	should	reflect	the	diverse	customs	and	
practices	of	various	groups	in	the	community.	How	can	we	design	events	and	activities	to	
address	and	integrate	different	cultural	practices	and	preferences?		

Family-friendly	events:	Events	and	activities	should	be	structured	such	that	families	with	
children	can	easily	participate.	How	can	we	lower	barriers	in	terms	of	scheduling,	venue,	and	
availability	of	child	care,	among	other	items?		

Youth	outreach:	Community	events	and	activities	should	be	designed	to	engage	the	entire	
family,	not	just	adults.	How	can	we	design	events	and	activities	to	involve	youth	and	solicit	their	
input?		

Renters	and	Owners:	Public	outreach	should	be	structured	so	that	renters	are	welcomed	and	
involved	in	engagement	efforts.	How	can	we	design	events,	activities,	and	notification	to	
encourage	participation	by	renters	and	owners	alike?		

Neighborhoods:	Tualatin	has	six	residential	Citizen	Involvement	Organizations	(CIOs)	and	one	
commercial	CIO.	These	groups	meet	at	varying	times	throughout	the	year,	and	have	hosted	
joint	meetings	on	important	citywide	topics	in	the	past.	How	can	the	outreach	opportunities	be	
designed	to	reach	as	many	of	Tualatin’s	neighborhoods	as	possible?	



Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 Page	
April	19,	2016	

5	

3. Public	Involvement	Program	Overview

The	project’s	PIP	is	informed	by	objectives	which	guide	our	approach	as	well	as	the	Council-
adopted	public	involvement	principles	discussed	below.	

Tualatin	Principles	of	Citizen	Involvement	

The	City	of	Tualatin	adopted	its	Principles	of	Citizen	Involvement	in	June	2011	to	guide	the	
citizen	involvement	process	in	projects	and	programs	in	Tualatin.	These	principles	include:	

• Capacity	Building:	The	City’s	role	in	promoting	capacity	building	is	to	provide
information,	resources	and	facilitate	collaboration	among	various	community	members
and	organizations.

• Process	Integrity:	Process	integrity	is	the	ability	to	conduct	reliable	government	activity
in	a	transparent	environment.	Tualatin	should	have	a	clear	and	understandable
democratic	process	for	decision-making,	which	is	inclusive	and	easy	for	the	entire
community	to	become	engaged.

• Fiscally	Responsible:	The	means	used	to	achieve	citizen	involvement	and	the	process	for
which	to	engage	the	community	should	consider	the	City’s	fiscal	condition	and	exercise
fiscal	prudence.

• Accessible:	All	public	decision	making	processes	will	be	accessible,	open,	honest	and
transparent.	It	should	provide	a	multifaceted	approach	for	two-way	engagement
between	the	City	and	the	community.

• Effective	Feedback:	Feedback	should	be	timely	and	constructive	to	improve	the	decision
making	process.

• Effective	Communication:	Effective	communication	is	essential	for	building	public
support	for	community	projects	and	activities,	and	for	developing	a	sense	of
community.

This	plan	has	been	developed	with	these	principles	in	mind	and	is	designed	to	meet	the	
objectives	listed	below.	

Program	Objectives	
Creating	an	outreach	strategy	designed	to	involve	citizens	in	an	engaging	process	that	tells	the	
story	of	current	needs	and	conditions,	and	explains	various	alternatives,	costs,	benefits	and	
opportunities	is	integral	to	the	success	of	the	project.	The	public	involvement	strategy	is	
designed	to	achieve	the	following	objectives:	

• Engage	those	who	aren’t	usually	involved.	Involving	citizens	who	do	not	have	time	to
attend	City	events	is	a	considerable	challenge.	Nearly	30%	of	Tualatin’s	population	is	25-44
years	old.	Parents	with	very	young	and	school-aged	children	are	often	too	busy	to	attend
“yet	another”	event.	This	is	also	true	of	young	adults	and	citizens	who	are	heavily	involved
in	“other”	community	activities,	such	as	parent-teacher,	business	or	sports	organizations.



	

Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 	 Page		
April	19,	2016	

6	

Therefore,	instead	of	expecting	citizens	to	come	to	us	at	City	meetings,	we	will	go	to	them.	
We	will	also	engage	citizens	electronically	through	online	platforms.		

	
• Connect	with	diverse	communities	across	Tualatin.	Approximately	19%	of	Tualatin’s	

residents	identify	as	Hispanic/Latino.	Therefore,	it	is	important	to	make	a	special	effort	to	
hear	from	this	population.	The	city	should	build	relationships	with	key	leaders	and	
organizations	in	order	to	build	relationships,	to	learn	how	to	best	engage	this	community,	
and	convey	interest	in	involving	immigrant	residents	in	planning	for	the	future.	When	
feasible,	materials	should	be	translated.		

	
• Empower	youth.	The	purpose	of	the	City’s	Youth	Advisory	Committee	is	to	serve	and	

improve	the	Tualatin	community	through	positive	activities,	strengthening	relationships,	
appreciating	diversity,	and	forming	more	supportive	relationships	between	youth	and	
adults.	If	we	want	to	keep	the	youth	in	the	community	when	they	become	adults,	they	
should	have	a	voice	in	developing	what	the	City	provides	in	the	future.	The	YAC	should	be	
used	as	a	resource	to	float	ideas	for	reaching	out	to	youth.		

	
• Build	community	connections	by	utilizing	existing	networks	and	information	channels.	To	

maximize	limited	resources,	it	is	critical	to	reach	out	to	citizens	through	City-appointed	
boards	and	commissions	and	community	organizations	that	have	a	history	of	partnering	
with	the	City.	Informing	these	groups	about	the	process	and	engaging	them	to	help	
disseminate	information	and	get	their	constituents	involved	will	help	to	share	the	story	and	
gather	broad-based	community	input.	This	is	also	a	great	opportunity	to	reach	out	to	
organizations	with	whom	the	City	has	not	yet	engaged	to	build	new	partnerships.	It	can	also	
provide	a	foundation	for	ongoing	coalitions	to	sustain	progress	toward	achieving	
community	goals.		

	
• Foster	sustained	interaction	between	Tualatin	residents	and	their	government.	Engaging	

Tualatin’s	citizens	on	major	community	decisions	continues	to	build	upon	the	commitment	
to	be	accountable	to	the	public	and	their	desires	for	the	future	of	the	community.	After	the	
completion	of	the	project,	a	summary	of	the	results	will	be	disseminated.	Sharing	that	
status	with	citizens	and	asking	for	feedback	will	foster	sustained	interaction	between	
citizens	and	their	government.		

	
• Engage	those	who	normally	wouldn’t	attend	an	event	specific	to	the	Civic	Center	outreach	

by	participating	in	existing,	popular	Tualatin	sponsored	events.	Not	everyone	will	be	
enticed	to	participate	when	an	event	is	only	about	the	Civic	Center,	therefore	it	will	be	
important	to	attend	popular	Tualatin	events	to	engage	a	variety	of	people	with	a	variety	of	
interests.	For	example,	intercept	surveys	could	be	conducted	at	events	at	the	Library	or	the	
Commons.		

	
• Use	visual	tools	to	help	people	understand	and	compare	alternative	scenarios.		Renderings	

and	other	graphics	will	help	stimulate	understanding	and	discussion	around	each	of	the	



	

Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 	 Page		
April	19,	2016	

7	

alternatives	under	consideration,	as	well	as	the	potential	benefits	of	an	expanded	library	
structure.		The	goal	is	to	help	citizens	interact	with	the	key	questions	at	hand,	and	suggest	
strategies	for	accomplishing	project	goals.	

		
	 	



	

Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 	 Page		
April	19,	2016	

8	

4. Implementation	
	
Public	engagement	will	involve	scheduled	events,	such	as	open	houses,	meetings	and	ongoing	
activities	such	as	online	resources,	surveys,	etc.	as	described	below.			
	
		 Date	 Quantity	
Committee	Engagement	 		 		
City	Advisory	Committees	 May	 4	
Other	City	Committees/Groups	 May-June	 6	
City	Council	Meetings	 TBD	 2	
Public	Involvement	Materials	 		 		
Key	Messaging/Branding	 April-May	 1	
Fact	Sheet	 May	 1	
Newsletter/E-News	Articles	 May-June	 4	
FAQ	 May	 1	
Website	Content	 May-June	 Ongoing	
Social	Media	Strategy	 Ongoing	 Ongoing	
Media/Press	Releases	 May-June	 2	
Translate	Outreach	Materials	 Ongoing	 Ongoing	
Video	 April-May	 1	
Statistically	Valid	Survey	 April-June	 1	
PI	Summary	Report	 June	 1	
Online	Survey	 April-June	 1	
Public	Meetings	 		 		
Open	Houses/Community	Summits	 May-June	 2	
Neighborhood/CIO	Meetings	 May-June	 3	
Events/Activities	 		 		
Stakeholder	Interviews/Focus	Groups	 May-June	 12	
Intercept	Surveys	 April-June	 2	
Event	Booths	 TBD	 TBD	
Online	Engagement	 May-June	 2	
	
This	section	describes	how	these	events	will	be	designed	to	address	the	challenges	identified	in	
engaging	the	Tualatin	community.	
	
Challenge	
	

Strategies	
	

Multilingual	Content	 Web	Site:	The	Web	site	will	prominently	include	an	option	to	enable	
automated	translation5	into	various	languages.	Where	possible,	use	
of	this	feature	will	be	measured	to	determine	how	often	materials	
are	translated,	what	pages	are	most	popular,	and	what	languages	are	
being	used6.		
	



	

Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 	 Page		
April	19,	2016	

9	

Physical	Materials:	Key	flyers,	posters,	and	other	handouts	will	be	
made	available	in	English	and	Spanish.	Wherever	possible,	all	
handouts	or	materials	will	also	be	posted	to	the	Web	site	in	HTML	
format,	enabling	the	use	of	automated	translation.		
	
Effective	Content:	In	all	Web	and	printed	materials,	use	active-voice	
language	that	minimizes	jargon	and	colloquialisms	to	enable	
effective	translation.	Use	graphics	that	reinforce	the	text	to	help	
draw	attention	and	convey	the	intended	message.		
	
Public	Events:	Wherever	possible,	Spanish	speakers	will	be	available	
at	public	events.	There	will	also	be	an	event	hosted	to	target	the	
Hispanic/Latino	population	where	discussions	will	be	primarily	
facilitated	in	Spanish.		
	

Diverse	customs	and	
practices	

Public	Events:	During	planning	of	public	events,	staff	will	work	with	
representatives	of	community	organizations	and	other	bodies	as	
appropriate	to	ensure	that	the	design	of	the	event	is	appropriate.		
	
Venues:	Where	possible	and	appropriate,	venues	where	people	
traditionally	gather	such	as	parks,	library,	and	other	social	venues	will	
be	utilized.	Each	event	will	include	a	question	on	the	public	
evaluation	asking	how	the	event	could	have	been	made	easier	to	
attend	or	participate	in.		
	

Family-friendly	
events	

Public	Events:	Wherever	possible,	public	events	will	be	scheduled	to	
avoid	conflicts	with	existing	events	and	major	school	functions.	Some	
public	events	may	be	held	multiple	times	to	allow	for	schedule	
conflicts.	Public	events	will	include	project-related	activities	for	
school-aged	children.	Where	possible,	events	will	be	held	in	venues	
that	are	convenient	to	families.		
	
Access	to	event	materials:	All	materials,	handouts,	and	presentations	
will	be	posted	to	the	Web	site	for	review	by	those	who	could	not	
attend.	Wherever	possible,	follow-on	questions	posted	to	the	Web	
site	will	attempt	to	continue	the	discussion	at	the	meeting,	while	
allowing	those	who	could	not	attend	to	participate.		
	

Youth	outreach	 Social	Media	and	Technology:	Emphasize	frequent	use	of	social	
media	and	other	technology-facilitated	communication	in	a	manner	
that	facilitates	youth	awareness	and	participation.		
	
Public	Events:	All	events	will	include	project-related	activities	for	
school-aged	children.	Older	children	will	be	encouraged	to	



	

Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 	 Page		
April	19,	2016	

10	

participate	in	discussions	and	activities.		
	
School	Outreach:	Staff	will	work	with	local	high	schools	to	involve	
their	student	organizations,	classes,	or	other	groups	in	public	events	
and	activities.		
	
Youth	Advisory	Council:	Staff	will	involve	representatives	from	the	
Youth	Advisory	Council	to	design	youth-specific	activities	and	events.		
	

Renters	and	owners	 Notification:	When	sending	formal	public	notices,	staff	will	
investigate	ways	to	broaden	traditional	owner-directed	mailing	lists	
to	also	include	resident-directed	mailings.		
	
Web	Site	and	Social	Media:	All	public	notices	will	be	accompanied	by	
notices	posted	to	the	project	and	City	Web	sites,	social	media,	and	
other	City	outlets.	
	
Data	Collection:	When	requesting	demographic	information	or	
targeted	input	from	owners,	also	gather	the	length	of	their	residency	
in	the	City	to	allow	for	further	analysis	of	different	opinions	based	on	
the	time	spent	here,	and	to	enable	further	follow-up	to	understand	
what	drives	their	choice	to	live	here.		
	
Multi-family	Targeted	Outreach:	Work	directly	with	the	City’s	
apartment	complexes	to	distribute	information,	flyers	and	surveys.	If	
possible,	host	a	focus	group	at	one	of	the	complexes’	community	
meeting	spaces.	
	

Neighborhoods	 Notification:	Work	with	CIO	leaders	to	distribute	information	and	
engage	their	neighborhoods.	Utilize	their	social	media	outlets	
(Facebook,	Nextdoor,	etc.)	and	email	distribution	lists	to	notify	
neighborhoods	about	upcoming	meetings	and	events.	
	
Meeting	Venues:	Work	with	CIO	leadership	to	schedule	meetings	at	
venues	closest	to	their	neighborhoods	to	make	it	convenient	for	
families	to	attend.	
	

	
Summary	of	Findings	
	
All	data	collected	during	the	public	involvement	process	will	be	compiled	and	summarized	in	a	
report.	This	report	will	be	accessible	through	the	City’s	website,	and	presentation	of	the	
findings	will	be	made	at	a	public	City	Council	meeting.		
	



	

Tualatin	Civic	Center	Public	Involvement	Plan	 	 Page		
April	19,	2016	

11	

5. Assessment	
	
	
Ongoing	assessment	of	the	engagement	strategies	will	help	staff	and	consultant	team	to	
continually	improve	engagement	efforts	to	yield	maximum	participation.	Each	activity	in	the	PIP	
will	be	designed	with	evaluation	in	mind,	and	conducting	a	periodic	review	will	allow	for	
adjustment	of	tools	and	strategies.		
	
The	following	indicators	will	be	tracked	over	the	course	of	the	public	engagement:	
	

	
For	each	event	and	activity	will	involve	some	sort	of	participant	assessment	designed	to	provide	
feedback	on	the	overall	quality	and	effectiveness	of	the	event	or	activity.	If	contact	information	
is	provided,	City	staff	will	follow	up	directly	with	participants	who	provide	specific	suggestions.	
	

General	
Participation	

• Number	of	people	participating	
• Frequency	of	people	participating	(#	of	touches)	
• Share	of	repeat	participants	

Communications	
Channels	

• Numbers	and	types	of	venues	for	presentations	
• Attendance	at	public	events	
• Number	of	page	views	
• Number	of	social	media	likes/comments/retweets/mentions	

Input	
Characteristics	

• Types	of	activities	either	online	or	at	public	events	
• Number	and	means	of	comments	(written,	online,	email,	

meetings,	etc.	
Broad	
Engagement	

• Number	of	organizations	engaged	
• Number	of	non-English	speakers	participating	in	public	events	
• Frequency	of	translation	or	use	of	translated	materials	
• Demographic	information	about	participants	(where	possible)	

Improvement	
Opportunities	

• Suggestions	for	improvement	gathered	from	participant	
evaluations	

• Number	and	frequency	of	requests	for	assistance	in	locating	
project	resources	



BRINGING 
TUALATIN TOGETHER

The City of Tualatin is committed to developing and maintaining 
safe, durable, quality infrastructure to serve our community, from 
the best streets and reliable sewer systems to award-winning 
parks and trails. Recently, the City has turned its attention to the 
buildings which house City services, to evaluate their physical 
conditions, forecast future space needs and understand how we 
can better serve the Tualatin community. For many years, the 
City has operated out of seven different buildings, as opposed to 
a traditional city hall or “civic center” where people can get the 
services they need and hold community events in a single central 
location; several of these buildings are not seismically updated 
and do not meet current codes. Through the recent update of 
our community vision, Tualatin Tomorrow, community members 
expressed a desire to integrate city services, create additional 
public spaces and expand library space. To that end, the Tualatin 
City Council is exploring various alternatives and inviting our 
community to weigh-in on a preferred direction. 

BACKGROUND

For many years following its inception in 1913, Tualatin looked and 
felt like many small farming towns in Oregon. �at dynamic began 
to change in the 1970s with the boom of the high tech industry 
and population growth within the Portland-Metro area. Over time, 
Tualatin has diversi�ed economically, and become a premier residential 
community hosting more than 26,000 residents. �is growth has 
increased demand for consolidated service delivery. �e opportunity 
to consolidate services in one central location and expand the Tualatin 
Library means one-stop shopping for your city services and more 
community space for public meetings, events and programs. 

�e City has never had a central home, and there are ine�ciencies 
that come from being in so many di�erent locations. Library sta� and 
volunteers share desks, lockers and workspaces in a small workroom 
while also sorting and managing the library’s materials and collections. 
�e City leases o�ce space and has moved sta� temporarily into the 
old houses which were not designed as o�ces in Community Park to 
meet space needs. 

In 2014-15, the City conducted a facilities study and collected hundreds 
of ideas from the community on locations for a future Civic Center 
and priorities for expanded library space. �e study determined how 
much o�ce space and library space was needed, and alternatives were 
narrowed to two feasible options including a site next to the Tualatin 
Police Department and a site on the Tualatin Commons. 

COMMUNITY IDENTIFIED GOALS: 
• Reduce inconvenience and confusion experienced by customers;
• Create safer working environments per building code standards for

employees;
• Improve operational efficiency by consolidating departments in

central space;
• Eliminate costs for set up and take down of temporary Council

Chambers and Municipal Court; and,
• Provide additional community meeting spaces.

A three-story Civic Center on the Tualatin Commons would meet the City’s 
space needs and would provide additional retail and o�ce space.

A two-story Civic Center next to the Tualatin Police Department would meet 
the City’s space needs out to 2025. 



EXPLORING THE 
ALTERNATIVES

Each alternative meets the City’s space need projections through 
the year 2025. The site on the Tualatin Commons is unique, 
as the Civic Center presence there could stimulate additional 
retail activity and provide leasable space generating additional 
municipal revenue. This additional space could also be available in 
future years if the City needed more expansion space. 

By consolidating services in either of these locations, the City 
would by default create additional space for the Library to expand 
at its current location. This, in turn, would enable library staff to 
deliver a range of service priorities requested by customers.

LIBRARY EXPANSION PRIORITIES:
• Better space for children/youth
• More multipurpose community space
• Improved access to technology
• Adequate staff space to support library programs
• General facilities improvements

HOW WOULD THE CITY 
PAY FOR THIS PROJECT?

�is project would require a bond to be approved by Tualatin voters. 

Depending on which alternative the community would support, the tax 
increase for the average homeowner would be approximately $3 to $5 
per month for 20 years. 

�e Tualatin City Council is seeking community input as they consider 
adding this to the November 2016 ballot for the voters to decide. 

WHAT DO YOU THINK?
You can share your input by attending an upcoming meeting 

or community open house, or go online and participate 
in a brief survey. 

For more information about the project, 
visit TUALATINOREGON.GOV or contact Tanya Williams 

at TWILLIAMS@CI.TUALATIN.OR.US or call 503.691.3065. 

POLICE DEPARTMENT SITE TUALATIN COMMONS SITE

CITY OFFICE SQUARE FOOTAGE 30,290 30,450 SF

CIVIC CENTER RENTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 0 SF 13,220 SF 1

LIBRARY EXPANSION SQUARE FOOTAGE 6,500 SF 6,500 SF

CIVIC CENTER CONSTRUCTION COST $18.2 MILLION $22.9 MILLION

LIBRARY EXPANSION COST $3.7 MILLION $3.7 MILLION

TOTAL BOND REQUEST $24.3 MILLION 2 $32.1 MILLION 3

1. Includes 5,170 sf on the ground �oor. 2. Includes contingency and library expansion. 
3. Does not include additional rental income. Includes contingency, land cost and library expansion.

A new Civic Center would allow for the Library to expand into the City o�ce 
space next door adding more community gathering and programming space.



CONSOLIDACIÓN DE LA 
CIUDAD DE TUALATIN

La Ciudad de Tualatin está comprometida con el desarrollo y 
mantenimiento de una infraestructura de calidad, durable y segura, 
que sirva a nuestra comunidad: desde las mejores calles y sistemas de 
drenaje confiables hasta nuestros galardonados parques y veredas. 
Recientemente, la ciudad ha volcado su interés hacia los edificios 
que albergan a sus agencias de servicios, con el fin de evaluar sus 
condiciones físicas, pronosticar las necesidades de uso de espacios en 
el futuro y para entender mejor cómo podemos hacer que los servicios 
sean más accesibles para los residentes de la ciudad. Por muchos años, 
la ciudad ha operado desde siete diferentes edificios, a diferencia 
del tradicional Palacio Municipal o “Centro Cívico”, donde la gente 
tendría acceso a los servicios y llevaría a cabo eventos comunitarios 
en un lugar centralizado único. A través de la actualización reciente 
de nuestra visión comunitaria, Tualatin Tomorrow (Tualatin Mañana), 
algunos miembros de la comunidad expresaron su deseo de integrar los 
servicios de la ciudad, crear espacios públicos adicionales y expandir el 
espacio de la biblioteca.  Con ese fin, el Consejo de la Ciudad de Tualatin 
está explorando varias alternativas e invitando a nuestra comunidad a 
opinar sobre qué rumbo tomar. 

ANTECEDENTES

Por muchos años, después de su creación en 1913, Tualatin parecía y se sentía 
igual que muchos de los pequeños pueblos granjeros de Oregón. Esa dinámica 
empezó a cambiar en los años setenta con el auge de la industria de alta 
tecnología y el crecimiento de la población dentro de la zona metropolitana de 
Portland. Con el paso del tiempo, Tualatin se ha diversi�cado económicamente 
y se ha convertido en una comunidad residencial de primera clase, alojando a 
más de 26,000 residentes. Este crecimiento ha hecho que aumente la demanda 
de procuración de servicios consolidados.  La oportunidad de consolidar estos 
servicios en un lugar centralizado único y ampliar la Biblioteca de Tualatin 
signi�caría poder acceder a todos los servicios de la ciudad en un mismo lugar, 
además de tener un espacio comunitario para reuniones, eventos y programas 
públicos 

La ciudad nunca ha tenido un establecimiento centralizado, lo que, como 
resultado, conlleva ine�ciencias por estar dividida en tantos lugares distintos. 
El personal y los voluntarios de la biblioteca comparten escritorios, casilleros 
y áreas de trabajo en un pequeño espacio, donde clasi�can y manejan los 
materiales y colecciones de la biblioteca. La ciudad renta espacios de o�cina 
y ha acomodado a empleados en las viejas casas del Community Park para 
solventar las necesidades de espacio. Esto ha llevado a:

En el periodo de 2014-15, la ciudad realizó un estudio de instalaciones y 
recogió cientos de ideas de la comunidad acerca de la ubicación futura del 
Centro Cívico y las prioridades de expansión del espacio de la biblioteca. El 
estudio reveló la cantidad de espacio de o�cina y biblioteca que se necesita, y 
se descartaron alternativas hasta llegar a dos opciones factibles, que incluyen 
un sitio ubicado a un lado del Departamento de Policía de Tualatin y otro en 
Tualatin Commons.

METAS IDENTIFICADAS POR LA COMUNIDAD: 

• Reducir la incomodidad y confusión que sufren los clientes;
• Crear ambientes de trabajo más seguros para los empleados, de acuerdo a 

los estándares del código de construcción;
• Incrementar la eficiencia de operaciones al consolidar los departamentos en 

un espacio centralizado;
• Eliminar costos por armado y desmontaje de salones temporales para el 

Consejo y el Tribunal Municipal; y
• Proporcionar espacios adicionales para reuniones comunitarias.

Un Centro Cívico de tres pisos en Tualatin Commons satisface las necesidades de 
espacio de la ciudad y proporcionaría espacio comercial y de o�cinas adicional.

Un Centro Cívico de dos pisos a un lado del Departamento de Policía de 
Tualatin satisface las necesidades de la cuidad hasta el 2025.

CONSTRUYENDO TUALATIN’S FUTURO



EXPLORACIÓN DE 
ALTERNATIVAS

Cada alternativa cumple con la proyección de necesidades de la ciudad. 
El sitio ubicado en Tualatin Commons es único, ya que la presencia del 
Centro Cívico podría estimular mayor actividad comercial y proporcionar 
espacio rentable, generando un ingreso municipal adicional. Este 
espacio adicional podría también estar disponible en el futuro si la 
ciudad necesitase más espacio para expandirse. 

Al consolidar los servicios en cualquiera de estos sitios, la ciudad crearía 
automáticamente espacio adicional para que la biblioteca se amplíe 
en su ubicación actual.  Esto, a su vez, permitiría que el personal de 
la biblioteca ofrezca la gama de servicios prioritarios que solicitan los 
clientes.

PRIORIDADES DE EXPANSIÓN DE LA BIBLIOTECA:

• Mejor espacio para los niños y jóvenes.
• Más espacio de usos múltiples para la comunidad.
• Mejora en el acceso a la tecnología
• Espacio adecuado para los empleados para apoyar los programas de la 

biblioteca.
• Mejoras a las instalaciones generales

¿CÓMO PAGARÍA LA CIUDAD ESTE PROYECTO?

El proyecto requerirá que el electorado de Tualatin apruebe la emisión de un 
bono. Dependiendo de la alternativa que la comunidad apoye, el aumento de 
impuestos para el propietario de una casa promedio sería de aproximadamente 
$3 a $5 por mes por año por 20 años. El Consejo de la Ciudad de Tualatin 
está buscando retroalimentación, ya que está considerando agregar esto a las 
elecciones de noviembre de 2016 para que el electorado lo decida.

¿QUÉ OPINA?
Usted puede compartir su opinión asistiendo 

a nuestra próxima junta o jornada de puertas abiertas, 
o puede participar en línea en una breve encuesta. 

Para mayor información sobre el proyecto, 
visite TUALATINOREGON.GOV contacte a Tanya Williams 

vía TWILLIAMS@CI.TUALATIN.OR.US o llame al 503.691.3065. 

DEPARTAMENTO DE POLICÍA TUALATIN COMMONS

ÁREA (EN PIES CUADRADOS) DE OFICINAS DE LA CIUDAD 30,290 30,450 ft2

ÁREA RENTABLE DEL CENTRO CÍVICO 0 FT2 30,450 ft2

ÁREA DE EXPANSIÓN DE LA BIBLIOTECA 6,500 FT2 6,500 ft2

COSTO DEL PROYECTO DEL CENTRO CÍVICO $24.3 millones $32.1 millones

COSTO DE EXPANSIÓN DE LA BIBLIOTECA: $3.7 millones $32.1 millones

COSTO TOTAL DEL PROYECTO $28 millones $32.1 millones
*incluye 5,170 ft2 en planta baja.  **No incluye ingresos adicionales por rentas

Un nuevo Centro Cívico permitiría la Biblioteca para expandirse en el espacio 
de o�cina en la Ciudad de añadir más espacio de reunión de la comunidad y la 
programación de al lado.



A LITTLE HISTORY...
For many years following its inception in 1913, Tualatin looked 
and felt like many small farming towns in Oregon. That dynamic 
began to change in the 1970s with the boom of the high tech 
industry and population growth within the Portland-Metro area. 
Over time, Tualatin has diversified economically, and become 
a premier residential community hosting more than 26,000 
residents. This growth has increased demand for consolidated 
service delivery. The opportunity to consolidate services in one 
central location and expand the Tualatin Library means one-stop 
shopping for your city services and more community space for 
public meetings, events and programs.

The City has never had a central home, and there are 
inefficiencies that come from being in so many different 
locations. Library staff and volunteers share desks, lockers, 
and workspaces in a small workroom while also sorting and 
managing the Library’s materials and collections. The City leases 
office space and has moved staff temporarily into the old houses 
which were not designed as offices in Community Park to meet 
space needs. 

In 2014-15, the City conducted a facilities study and collected 
hundreds of ideas from the community on locations for a future 
Civic Center and priorities for expanded library space. The 
study determined how much office space and library space was 
needed, and alternatives were narrowed to two feasible options 
including a site next to the Tualatin Police Department and a site 
on the Tualatin Commons.

A LOOK AT TUALATIN’S BUILDINGS TODAY
For many years, the City of Tualatin has operated out of seven different buildings as opposed to a traditional city hall or “civic 
center” where people can get the services they need and hold community events in a single central location. Several of the 
City’s existing buildings are not seismically updated and do not meet current codes. 

The Tualatin community updated their vision in 2013-2014 and expressed their desire a central civic center which includes 
additional public spaces and expanded Library space. To this end, the Tualatin City Council is asking the community to weigh-in 
on a preferred direction.

WHAT’S NEXT?
Please review the alternatives for a future Civic Center and 
expanded Library and share your input. You can complete a 
survey, attend an open house or participate in an upcoming 
event. For additional information about the project, please 
visit TUALATINOREGON.GOV. 

COMMUNITY 
IDENTIFIED GOALS

REDUCE INCONVENIENCE & CONFUSION 
EXPERIENCED BY CUSTOMERS

PROVIDE ADDITIONAL COMMUNITY MEETING 
SPACES 

IMPROVE OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY BY 
CONSOLIDATING DEPARTMENTS IN CENTRAL SPACE

CREATE SAFER WORKING ENVIRONMENTS PER 
BUILDING CODE STANDARDS FOR EMPLOYEES 

ELIMINATE COSTS FOR SET UP & TAKE DOWN OF 
TEMPORARY COUNCIL CHAMBERS & MUNICIPAL 
COURT

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

WHERE ARE YOUR SERVICES 
LOCATED TODAY?

SW BOONES FERRY RD.

SW
 TU

AL
AT

IN
 R

D.

SW TUALATIN RD.

SW
 MARTINAZZI AVE.

BUILDING F 
COMMUNITY SERVICES

BUILDING E 
LAFKY HOUSE

BUILDING D 
JUANITA POHL CENTER

BUILDING B 
LIBRARY

B 

A 

D 
EF

C 

BUILDING C 
CITY OFFICES

BUILDING A 
SENECA BUILDING

BUILDING G  
POLICE DEPARTMENT

G



POLICE 
DEPARTMENT SITE

This building assumes two stories of office space and meets the City’s space needs for 
future growth. Due to the location of the WES commuter rail, the police station and 
Civic Center will need to share a single entry off Sweek Drive, which could create some 
congestion. The building includes a City Council Chamber that doubles as a courtroom.

NEW CIVIC CENTER AT POLICE DEPARTMENT

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 49,490 SF

OFFICE SPACE SQUARE FOOTAGE 30,290 SF

PARKING SQUARE FOOTAGE 19,200 SF

TOTAL PARKING SPACES 90 NEW SPACES FOR CIVIC CENTER
50 NEW SPACES UNDER BUILDING

40 NEW SURFACE PARKING

CIVIC CENTER CONSTRUCTION COST $18.2 MILLION

LIBRARY EXPANSION COST $3.7 MILLION

TOTAL BOND REQUEST $24.3 MILLION 1

1 Includes contingency and library expansion.

THE 
COMMONS SITE

This building assumes three stories of office space and 13,220 feet of leasable retail or 
office space. The building meets the City’s current space needs and would allow for future 
expansion if the City ever needed additional space. Traffic flow for this site is slightly more 
favorable because of its access to and from the site. The building would have ground floor 
retail/office space to take advantage of the prime retail location on the Commons. The 
Council Chambers/Court Room are on the second floor. 

NEW 3-STORY CITY HALL AT THE COMMONS

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 71,160 SF

CITY OFFICE SPACE SQUARE FOOTAGE 30,450 SF

RENTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 13,220 SF (5,170 SF ON GROUND FLOOR)

PARKING SQUARE FOOTAGE 22,320 SF

TOTAL PARKING SPACES 92 SPACES
65 NEW SPACES UNDER THE BUILDING

27 NEW SURFACE PARKING

CIVIC CENTER CONSTRUCTION COST $22.9 MILLION

LIBRARY EXPANSION COST $3.7 MILLION

TOTAL BOND REQUEST $32.1 MILLION 2

2 Does not include additional rental income. Includes contingency, land cost and library expansion.

EXPANDING THE LIBRARY, 
TUALATIN’S COMMUNITY LIVING ROOM 
The Library is known as Tualatin’s “Living Room” because of the community gathering space for children, teens and adults. The community spaces are used 
frequently and host hundreds of programs throughout the year. 

COMMUNITY LIBRARY EXPANSION PRIORITIES:

• Better space for children/youth
• More multipurpose community space
• Improved access to technology
• Adequate staff space to support library programs
• General facilities improvements

THIS PROJECT WOULD REQUIRE A BOND TO BE APPROVED BY TUALATIN VOTERS. DEPENDING ON WHICH ALTERNATIVE THE COMMUNITY WOULD SUPPORT, THE TAX INCREASE WOULD 

BE APPROXIMATELY $3 TO $5 PER MONTH FOR 20 YEARS. THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL IS ASKING FOR COMMUNITY INPUT AS THEY CONSIDER ADDING THIS TO THE NOVEMBER 2016 

BALLOT FOR THE VOTERS TO DECIDE.

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

PLANNING

CITY COUNCIL DIRECTION

POLLING

BOND VOTE

DESIGN & DOCUMENT ARCHITECT SELECTION

CONSTRUCTION
POLICE SITE CONSTRUCTION + MOVE IN | LIBRARY CONSTRUCTION + MOVE IN

3 STORY COMMONS CONSTRUCTION + MOVE IN | LIBRARY CONSTRUCTION + MOVE IN

HOW WILL THE CITY PAY FOR THIS PROJECT AND HOW LONG WILL IT TAKE?

A CIVIC CENTER TO CALL HOME
The City is considering two alternatives for a future Civic Center. Each option meets the City’s space need projections for the future. The site on the Tualatin Commons is unique, 
as the Civic Center presence there could stimulate additional retail activity and provide leasable space for services for the community. By consolidating services in either 
location, the City would create additional space for the Library to expand at its current location. This would enable library staff to deliver a range of service priorities requested 
by customers in addition to providing flexible community gathering space. 

EXISTING LIBRARY

LIBRARY EXPANSION



TERRENO DEL 
DEPARTAMENTO DE POLICÍA
Este edificio contempla dos pisos de espacio para oficinas y cumple con las necesidades de 
espacio para el futuro. Debido a la ubicación del tren suburbano WES (servicio exprés del 
lado poniente, por sus siglas en inglés), la estación de policía y el Centro Cívico tendrán que 
compartir un acceso único de la calle Sweek Drive, lo cual podrá provocar congestionamiento 
en el tráfico. El edificio incluye un Salón del Consejo de la Ciudad que también fungirá como 
Sala de Audiencias. 

NUEVO CENTRO CÍVICO UBICADO EN EL TERRENO DEL DEPARTAMENTO DE POLICÍA

PIES CUADRADOS TOTALES 49,490 ft2

ÁREA DE OFICINAS EN PIES CUADRADOS 30,290 ft2

ÁREA DE ESTACIONAMIENTO  
EN PIES CUADRADOS

19,200 ft2

TOTAL DE CAJONES  
DE ESTACIONAMIENTO

90 CAJONES NUEVOS PARA EL CENTRO CÍVICO
50 CAJONES DEBAJO DEL EDIFICIO

40 CAJONES AL AIRE LIBRE

COSTO DE CONSTRUCCIÓN DEL CENTRO CÍVICO $18.2 MILLONES

COSTO DE EXPANSIÓN DE LA BIBLIOTECA $3.7 MILLONES

BONO MUNICIPAL SOLICITADO $24.3 MILLONES1

1 Incluye contingencia y expansión de la biblioteca

EL TERRENO DE 
TUALATIN COMMONS

Este edificio incluye tres pisos de área de oficinas y 13,220 pies rentables de área comercial 
o para oficinas. El edificio cubre las necesidades actuales y futuras de la Ciudad y permite 
expansión a futuro si la Ciudad llega a necesitar espacio adicional. El flujo de tráfico hacia estas 
instalaciones es accesible gracias a la entradas y salidas del terreno. Aprovechando el área 
comercial privilegiada que tiene The Commons, el edificio tendrá una planta baja con área 
comercial y de oficinas. El Salón del Consejo/Sala de Audiencias se ubican en el segundo piso. 

CENTRO CÍVICO DE 3 PISOS UBICADO EN TUALATIN COMMONS

PIES CUADRADOS TOTALES 71,160 ft2

ÁREA DE OFICINAS PARA LA CIUDAD EN PIES 
CUADRADOS

30,450 ft2

PIES CUADRADOS RENTABLES 13,220 ft2 
(INCLUYE 5,170 FT2 EN PLANTA BAJA)

ÁREA DE ESTACIONAMIENTO EN PIES CUADRADOS 22,320 ft2

TOTAL DE CAJONES DE ESTACIONAMIENTO 92 CAJONES
65 CAJONES DEBAJO DEL EDIFICIO

27 CAJONES AL AIRE LIBRE

COSTO DE CONSTRUCCIÓN DEL CENTRO CÍVICO $22.9 MILLONES

COSTO DE EXPANSIÓN DE LA BIBLIOTECA: $3.7 MILLONES

BONO MUNICIPAL SOLICITADO $32.1 MILLONES 2

2 No incluye ingresos adicionales por rentas. Incluye contingencia, costo del terreno y expansión de la biblioteca.

LA EXPANSIÓN DE LA BIBLIOTECA, 
LA SALA DE LA COMUNIDAD DE TUALATIN  

A la biblioteca es conocida como la “sala” de Tualatin, porque es el sitio donde se reúnen los niños, jóvenes y adultos de la comunidad. Los espacios 
comunitarios son usados durante todo el año con frecuencia y son la cede cientos de programas. 

PRIORIDADES DE EXPANSIÓN DE LA BIBLIOTECA DE LA COMUNIDAD:
• Mejor espacio para los niños y jóvenes.
• Más espacio de usos múltiples para su uso por la 

comunidad.
• Mejora en el acceso a la tecnología.
• Espacio adecuado para que los empleados puedan 

apoyar los distintos programas de la biblioteca.
• Mejoras a las instalaciones generales.

EL PROYECTO REQUERIRÁ QUE EL ELECTORADO DE TUALATIN APRUEBE LA EMISIÓN DE UN BONO. DEPENDIENDO DE LA ALTERNATIVA QUE LA COMUNIDAD APOYE, EL AUMENTO DE 

IMPUESTOS PROMEDIO PARA EL PROPIETARIO DE UNA CASA SERÍA DE APROXIMADAMENTE $3 A $5 POR MES POR 20 AÑOS. EL CONSEJO DE LA CIUDAD DE TUALATIN ESTÁ BUSCANDO 

SABER QUE OPINA LA COMUNIDAD, YA QUE ESTÁ CONSIDERANDO AGREGAR ESTO A LAS ELECCIONES DE NOVIEMBRE DE 2016 PARA QUE EL ELECTORADO LO DECIDA.

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

PLANIFICACIÓN

DIRECCIÓN QUE TOMARÁ EL 
CONSEJO DE LA CIUDAD

ENCUESTAS
VOTO DEL BONO

DISEÑO Y DOCUMENTACIÓN SELECCIÓN DEL ARQUITECTO

CONSTRUCCIÓN

CONSTRUCCIÓN EN EL TERRENO DE LA POLICÍA + MUDANZA |CONSTRUCCIÓN DE LA 
BIBLIOTECA + MUDANZA

CONSTRUCCIÓN DEL EDIFICIO DE 3 PISO EN EL “COMMONS” + MUDANZA |CONSTRUCCIÓN 
DE LA BIBLIOTECA + MUDANZA

¿COMO LE HARÁ LA CIUDAD PARA PAGAR ESTE PROYECTO Y CUÁNTO TARDARÁ?

UN CENTRO CÍVICO QUE PODEMOS 
LLAMAR NUESTRO HOGAR

La Ciudad está considerando dos alternativas para un futuro Centro Cívico. Cada alternativa cumple con la proyección de necesidades de espacio de la ciudad. El sitio ubicado en 
Tualatin Commons es inmejorable, ya que la presencia del Centro Cívico podría estimular mayor actividad comercial y proporcionar espacio rentable para empresas que brindan 
servicios a la comunidad. Al consolidar los servicios en cualquiera de estos sitios, la ciudad crearía automáticamente espacio adicional para que la biblioteca se amplíe en su 
ubicación actual. Esto, a su vez, permitiría que el personal de la biblioteca ofrezca la gama de servicios prioritarios que solicitan los clientes adicionalmente de estar ofreciendo 
espacios multiusos para reuniones comunitarias. 

EXISTING LIBRARY

LIBRARY EXPANSION

CONSTRUYENDO PARA EL FUTURO 



6/20/2016 Oregon Local News - Tualatin gathering public input on proposed city hall

http://www.pamplinmedia.com/ttt/89-news/309715-186926-tualatin-gathering-public-input-on-proposed-city-hall?tmpl=component&print=1&page= 1/3

C28RT(S<  TuaOatin City 0anager SheriOyn /ombos said pubOic IeedbacN so Iar IaYors buiOding a three
story TuaOatin City HaOO oYerOooNing the /aNe oI the Commons. The buiOding ZouOd be more e[pensiYe than
the aOternatiYe� but the city couOd potentiaOOy Oease out space as an additionaO reYenue stream.

7XDODWLn JDWKerLnJ pXbOLF LnpXW on proposed FLWy KDOO
&reDWed on :ednesdDy� �� -Xne ���� ����� _ :rLWWen by 0DrN 0LOOer _ 

� &oPPenWs

2pen house heOd Oast ZeeN� surYey in circuOation

7XDODWLn KeOd LWs ILrsW open KoXse Wo
JDWKer IeedbDFN IroP WKe FoPPXnLWy on
D proposed neZ FLWy KDOO ODsW :ednesdDy�
&LWy 0DnDJer SKerLOyn /oPbos sDLd WKe
open KoXse� KeOd DW WKe 7XDODWLn 3oOLFe
'epDrWPenW� DWWrDFWed �� Wo ��
DWWendees� PDny oI WKeP WKere Ior D
PeeWLnJ oI FLWL]en LnYoOYePenW
orJDnL]DWLons ODWer Ln WKe eYenLnJ�
%XW WKe OLJKWOy DWWended open KoXse Ls
noW WKe onOy oXWreDFK eIIorW WKe FLWy KDs
done�
³:e
Ye been JoLnJ Wo DOO oI oXr boDrds
Dnd FoPPLWWees�´ /oPbos sDLd� ³+Dnds�
doZn� WKe IeedbDFN Ls WKe &oPPons sLWe
Ls WKe ZDy Wo Jo� Dnd on WKe ZKoOe� WKe

FosW doesn
W seeP oXW oI boXnds�´
7Ke FLWy Ls FonsLderLnJ WZo opWLons Ior bXLOdLnJ D FLWy KDOO or ³&LYLF &enWer�´ D WKree�sWory bXLOdLnJ oYerOooNLnJ WKe /DNe oI WKe
&oPPons Dnd D WZo�sWory bXLOdLnJ DFross WKe pDrNLnJ OoW IroP WKe poOLFe sWDWLon� %oWK opWLons ZoXOd reTXLre WKe FLWy Wo Jo oXW
Ior D bond PeDsXre� possLbOy Ds soon Ds WKLs 1oYePber�
7Ke bond DPoXnW Ior WKe &oPPons bXLOdLnJ Ls esWLPDWed DW ����� PLOOLon Dnd ZoXOd LnFOXde WKe FosWs oI pXrFKDsLnJ Dnd
dePoOLsKLnJ Dn e[LsWLnJ bXLOdLnJ DW WKe sLWe beWZeen SoXWKZesW SeneFD Dnd 1yberJ sWreeWs� %XLOdLnJ DW WKe poOLFe sLWe ZoXOd
WDNe D bond PeDsXre esWLPDWed DW DboXW ����� PLOOLon� %oWK bond PeDsXres ZoXOd LnFOXde IXnds Ior rePodeOLnJ e[LsWLnJ FLWy
oIILFes DWWDFKed Wo WKe 7XDODWLn 3XbOLF /LbrDry Wo proYLde DddLWLonDO OLbrDry Dnd pXbOLF PeeWLnJ spDFe�
&LWy oIILFes Dre FXrrenWOy spreDd beWZeen WKe OLbrDry bXLOdLnJ Dnd sL[ oWKers DFross 7XDODWLn� LnFOXdLnJ seYerDO DJLnJ bXLOdLnJs
Ln 7XDODWLn &oPPXnLWy 3DrN� +DYLnJ D FLWy KDOO ZoXOd FonsoOLdDWe PosW or DOO oI WKose oIILFes LnWo D sLnJOe bXLOdLnJ� ZKLFK
ZoXOd be oZned by WKe FLWy� 7Ke ODrJer bXLOdLnJ proposed Ior WKe &oPPons ZoXOd LnFOXde e[WrD spDFe on WKe JroXnd IOoor Dnd
Wop IOoor WKDW FoXOd be OeDsed Wo bXsLnesses or eYen WKe :DsKLnJWon &oXnWy JoYernPenW�
³7Ke PosW LnWeresWLnJ LdeD ZDs IroP WKe DrWs FoPPLWWee�´ /oPbos sDLd� ³7KeLr LdeD ZDs Wo pXW D FoIIee sKop Ln WKe JroXnd IOoor
on WKe &oPPons�´
2ne soPeZKDW ZKLPsLFDO LdeD� /oPbos e[pODLned� ZoXOd be Ior 7XDODWLn properWy oZners Wo reFoXp pDrW oI WKe DddLWLonDO
DPoXnW WKey ZLOO pDy Ln properWy WD[es oYer WKe ���yeDr OLIe oI WKe bond LssXe ZLWK D Iree FXp oI FoIIee eYery PonWK�
7Ke FLWy
s properWy WD[ OeYy Ls proMeFWed Wo LnFreDse IroP LWs FXrrenW ���� FenWs per ������ oI Dssessed YDOXe Wo ���� FenWs per
������ Ior WKe poOLFe sLWe or ���� FenWs per ������ Ior WKe &oPPons sLWe� DFFordLnJ Wo ILnDnFLDO proMeFWLons presenWed Wo WKe
7XDODWLn &LWy &oXnFLO Ln $prLO�
7Ke FoXnFLO ZLOO KDYe WKe ILnDO sDy Ds Wo ZKeWKer D bond PeDsXre sKoXOd be reIerred Wo YoWers� /oPbos sDLd WKe resXOWs oI DOO oI
WKe FLWy
s pXbOLF enJDJePenW ZorN ZLOO be presenWed Wo FoXnFLOors on -Xne ���
7Ke FLWy Ls FXrrenWOy FLrFXODWLnJ D ³sWDWLsWLFDOOy YDOLd sXrYey´ Wo JDXJe WKe pXbOLF
s LnWeresW Ln bXLOdLnJ ² Dnd pDyLnJ Ior ² D FLWy
KDOO� /oPbos sDLd� ,W ZLOO DOso be FondXFWLnJ oXWreDFK DW FoPPXnLWy eYenWs WKLs PonWK� LnFOXdLnJ one IroP noon Wo � p�P�
-Xne �� DW SWonerLdJe 3DrN FDWerLnJ PosWOy Wo 7XDODWLn
s SpDnLsK�speDNLnJ FoPPXnLWy�
2ne ZrLnNOe Ior WKe &LWy &oXnFLO Ds LW ZeLJKs LWs opWLons Ls WKDW WKe 7LJDrd�7XDODWLn SFKooO 'LsWrLFW
s boDrd oI dLreFWors Ls OLNeOy
Wo reIer D ���� PLOOLon bond Wo YoWers WKLs 1oYePber Ior FDpLWDO LPproYePenWs� 0osW oI 7XDODWLn IDOOs ZLWKLn WKe 7LJDrd�
7XDODWLn SFKooO 'LsWrLFW� Dnd WKe FLWy
s YoWers FoXOd bDON DW DpproYLnJ WZo WD[ OeYLes DW WKe sDPe eOeFWLon�
/oPbos sDLd WKere KDYe been no dLsFXssLons beWZeen WKe FLWy Dnd sFKooO dLsWrLFW on FoordLnDWLnJ WKeLr bond eIIorWs� bXW sKe
sDLd WKe FLWy Ls DZDre oI WKe dLsWrLFW
s pODns Dnd WKe &LWy &oXnFLO ZLOO OLNeOy WDNe WKeP LnWo DFFoXnW�



6/20/2016 Oregon Local News - Tualatin gathering public input on proposed city hall

http://www.pamplinmedia.com/ttt/89-news/309715-186926-tualatin-gathering-public-input-on-proposed-city-hall?tmpl=component&print=1&page= 2/3

C28RT(S<  $ tZostory TuaOatin City HaOO couOd be buiOt just south oI the TuaOatin 3oOice 'epartment. The
option is cheaper than the aOternatiYe� but it ZouOd haYe Oess space Ior city oIIices and ZouOd not be as
centraOOy Oocated.

³, WKLnN WKDW ZLOO be D bLJ IDFWor Ln WKeLr deFLsLon�PDNLnJ�´ /oPbos sDLd oI WKe FLWy FoXnFLOors�
$ ILnDO deFLsLon on ZKeWKer Wo Jo IorZDrd ZLWK D FLWy KDOO bond PeDsXre WKLs yeDr Ls e[peFWed by -XOy ���
5esLdenWs FDn ZeLJK Ln by FoPpOeWLnJ Dn onOLne sXrYey�

%y 0arN�0LOOHr
5eporWer
������������
ePDLO� PPLOOer#FoPPneZspDpers�FoP
)oOOoZ Xs on 7ZLWWer
9LsLW 8s on )DFebooN

SSRnVRrHG

$15.95  readers.com

$3599  joybird.com

Harry's

Trend Chaser

Stansberry Research

Comparisons.org Quotes

7KH�%XFKanRn���������

+RSVRn�0LG�&HntXr\�8�&KaLVH�SHFtLRnaO

+RZ�7KLV�5azRr�LV�&KanJLnJ�tKH��SKaYLnJ�:arV�

���7KLnJV�%HZLtFKHG�3rRGXFHrV�+LG�)rRP�)anV

)RrPHr�&RnJrHVVPan�,VVXHV�*ROG�:arnLnJ

<RX
rH�,n�)Rr�$�%LJ�SXrSrLVH�Ln������,I�<RX�2Zn�$�+RPH�Ln�25E*21



6/20/2016 Oregon Local News - Tualatin gathering public input on proposed city hall

http://www.pamplinmedia.com/ttt/89-news/309715-186926-tualatin-gathering-public-input-on-proposed-city-hall?tmpl=component&print=1&page= 3/3

-:B',S48SB%$&.B72B723

� *oTTeUts PaTWSiU 4edia 3oNiU��

SOare⤤ Sort by )est

Join the discussion¯

 5HSOy 

9 )aRer   13 days ago

Kudo's to the Times for covering this important issue to our community. And thanks to residents
who roll up their sleeves and get involved--and I've not been one of them. So it's sort of
hypocritical of me to complain--but I will.... The coffee idea? That's just goofy. And there is no
"free" coffee anymore than there's a free lunch. Sorry. Just sayin'.
△ ▽

 5HSOy 

1oOU STitO   15 days ago

They should have sought out public opinion before demolishing the old building and most likely
they would have found out the public didn't want it demolished but the politicians always seem
to work in a way to get what they want and not what the public wants...
△ ▽

Subscribe✉ Add Disqus to your site Add Disqus Addd Privacy�

9ecoTTeUd�

6KaUH ï

6KaUH ï

0LranGa
V�5HYHnJH
%ODNe dXPps *Zen DIWer 0LrDndD sKoZed KLP ZKDW Ke
s PLssLnJ�

/Harn�0RrH

Sponsored by EnStarz



!

!

"#$%!&'!()*+*$#,!!
"#$%!-*++!.!/#01*1%!
(2/23-452!67892:!!
!

!!

! !
;*%!<=>?!

!

31@A*1@B!0%!C-;!8@D@*1EF!
!
"#$%&&#%#"'"!
&$(!)*!+$,-!./0!1&#"!
234,56789!:;!('&#(!
<<<%8-=40>064?-%?3=!



!

! ! !
C-;!8262G8"-!!H!"I(:!4J!(7G/G(I5!"I9I"!"25(28!.!/IK8G8:!K45C!!H!!;G:!<=>?! !+!

!
!
(*0+@!
&'!
E&,$@,$D!
!! !

I5(84C7"(I45!.!;2(-4C4/4L:! MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM!<!

67;;G8:!.!4K6289G(I456!MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM!N!

O2:!JI5CI5L6!MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM!P!

G3325CIQ!MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM!>R!

!



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  2 

Introduction & Methodology 1 
 
From May 23-26, 2016 DHM Research conducted a telephone survey of 172 Tualatin voters. The 
purpose of the survey was to assess attitudes and opinions regarding a potential project to build a Civic 
Center and expand the existing library. 
 
Research Methodology: The telephone survey consisted of 172 registered Tualatin voters and took 
approximately 18 minutes to complete. Special effort was made to reach as many residents as possible in 
the City of Tualatin, and all available records within the city were called.  
 
Respondents were contacted by a live interviewer from a list of registered voters, which included cell 
phones. In gathering responses, a variety of quality control measures were employed, including 
questionnaire pre-testing and validation. Results were weighted by age, gender, and political party to 
match the likely voter turnout for the November 2016 election. 
 
Statement of Limitations: Any sampling of opinions or attitudes is subject to a margin of error. The 
margin of error is a standard statistical calculation that represents differences between the sample and 
total population at a confidence interval, or probability, calculated to be 95%. This means that there is a 
95% probability that the sample taken for this study would fall within the stated margin of error if 
compared with the results achieved from surveying the entire population. Due to the small sample size, 
differences found between demographic groups should be interpreted cautiously as possible differences. 
The margin of error for this survey is +/- 7.5%. 
 
DHM Research Background: DHM Research has been providing opinion research and consultation 
throughout the Pacific Northwest and other regions of the United States for over three decades. The firm 
is nonpartisan and independent and specializes in research projects to support public policy making. 

  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  3 

Summary & Observations 2 
 
Tualatin voters are highly satisfied with the direction of their city and the local 
services provided. 

§ Seven in ten Tualatin voters say things in the city are headed in the right direction (71%), while 
just one in ten said things were off on the wrong track (10%). 

o Long-time Tualatin residents—those who have lived in the city for more than ten years—
were the most positive, with 79% saying they were headed in the right direction. 

§ At least nine in ten residents express satisfaction with local city services, including parks and 
recreation (95%); police, fire, and emergency (94%); sewer and water (91%); and the library 
(90%). 
 

Voters see the value of a new Civic Center, but they are initially split on whether 
or not they support the project.  

§ Two-thirds of voters say a Civic Center, including city offices and City Council chambers, would 
be somewhat or very valuable to the city (66%). 

§ However, when asked whether they would support a project to build a new Civic Center and 
expand the existing library, voters are split: 43% of voters initially support the project and 42% 
initially oppose it. 

o The voters most likely to support the project in the initial test are those ages 30-44 (58%) 
and Democrats (54%). 

Many voters don’t know or believe that a new Civic Center is necessary. 
§ 30% of Tualatin voters said they didn’t know Tualatin lacked a City Hall or Civic Center and 3% 

weren’t sure. 
§ Voters who are opposed to the project initially cite a lack of necessity (34%). 
§ Nearly half of voters say one reason to oppose the project is that the City’s offices are adequate 

the way they are (48%), while 18% say they don’t know. 

Those who support the project see it as a chance to bring the community 
together. 

§ Supporters point out how a Civic Center could add character to Tualatin: “So the city can have an 
identity.” 

§ Supporters also note the benefits to creating a community and increasing convenience: “The city 
is growing and everything is all over the place.” 

  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  4 

Voters don’t respond strongly to the messages in support of a new Civic Center 
and library expansion. 

§ The strongest message in support of the Civic Center focuses on public safety implications. 
o 57% of voters say one reason to support the project is that in case of major emergency or 

flood, city offices, including the Emergency Operations Center, could fail and emergency 
could be compromised. 

§ Other messages in support of the project do not earn the same support. 
o Fewer than half of residents say an expanded library building, creating additional 

multipurpose community space that could be used by residents and community groups is 
a good or very good reason to support the project (49%). 

Voters exhibit concerns about government spending and increased taxes.  
§ Seven in ten voters say a good reason to oppose a new Civic Center and library expansion is that 

voters pay enough for property tax (69%). 
o Women, especially, are convinced by this argument (81%) when compared to men 

(55%). 
§ Two-thirds of voters say a good reason to support the Police Facility location is that the City of 

Tualatin already owns this land, which saves taxpayers money (66%). 
§ Other messages focusing on government savings are considered less convincing. 

o Only half of voters say a good reason to support the project is that city operations are 
housed in seven different buildings and City staff must commute between the buildings 
(51%). 

Voters show a strong preference for the Police Facility over the Tualatin 
Commons. 

§ A plurality of voters support the Police Facility location (49%), compared to 44% who oppose it. 
o Both Democrats (67%) and Republicans (74%) appreciate the cost-savings of using land 

already owned by the City. 
o A majority of long-time Tualatin residents support the project (52%). 

§ A majority of voters oppose the Tualatin Commons site (57%). 
o Voters don’t prioritize the wrap-around services offered, and fewer than half of voters say 

that these services are good reason to support the project (44%). 
o Additionally, fewer than half of voters say that retail space that could generate additional 

revenue is a good reason to support the project at this location (46%). 

Voter education should focus on safety concerns due to current city offices and 
the costs incurred by the City due to the lack of a Civic Center. 

§ Voters may not see the need for a Civic Center because they do not fully understand the state of 
the current facilities. 

§ Although voters were not particularly convinced by arguments about costs, such as the buildings 
the City must lease to compensate, voters do respond positively to messages about cost-savings 
and wasteful government spending; additional education may help bridge the gap. 

§ Ultimately, education may not outweigh voter reluctance to approve a new Civic Center when 
they are conscious of tax increases and currently satisfied with City administration. 

  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  5 

Key Findings 3 
 
Voters in the City of Tualatin were surveyed about a potential project to build a new Civic Center and 
expand the existing library. 

3.1 GENERAL MOOD 

Tualatin voters were very positive about the direction their city is headed.  
Seven in ten voters said things in Tualatin are headed in the right direction (71%) (Q1). Just one in ten 
voters (10%) said things in Tualatin are off on the wrong track. These figures show very high satisfaction 
among voters and are indicative that voters value their quality of life in Tualatin.  
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Democrats (75%) and Republicans (74%) alike were positive about the direction Tualatin is headed, 
although independent voters—including non-affiliated voters, registered Independents, and members of 
other parties—were a little less sure: 60% of independent voters said things were headed in the right 
direction, while 31% didn’t know.  
 
There was a correlation between positivity and length of residency and voting habits. Voters who have 
lived in Tualatin the longest (more than ten years) were most likely to say things were headed in the right 
direction (79%). Those who have lived in Tualatin for less than five years were less likely to say the same 
(48%), and instead more likely to say they didn’t know (42%). Tualatin voters who have voted in all four of 
the last four elections were also more likely to say things are on the right track (75%), compared to those 
who voted in just two of the last four elections (68%).  
 
 

Right 
direction

71%

Wrong 
track
10%

Don't 
know
19%

Chart 1
Direction of City



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  6 

Voters were highly satisfied with the services provided by their local government.  
Voters were asked about their satisfaction with police, fire, and emergency services (Q2), parks and 
recreation (Q3), the library (Q4), and sewer and water service (Q5).  
 
Overall, voters expressed satisfaction with each of the services. They gave the highest marks to parks 
and recreation; 95% of respondents said they were very or somewhat satisfied with this service. Nearly 
the same proportion of voters, 94%, said they were satisfied with police, fire, and emergency services, 
while both sewer and water service and the library were considered very or somewhat satisfactory by at 
least nine in ten voters (91% and 90%).  
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Satisfaction was high across demographic groups, and there were no notable differences between 
groups.  

3.2 AWARENESS OF CITY HALL ISSUES 

One in three Tualatin voters were unaware that the City lacks a City Hall or Civic 
Center.  
Although the majority of voters (67%) correctly noted that Tualatin does not have a City Hall or Civic 
Center, one in three voters either said they weren’t aware of this fact (30%) or weren’t sure (3%) (Q6).  
 
Young voters were the least likely to be aware of this fact: 69% of voters under 30 said they weren’t 
previously aware that Tualatin does not have a City Hall or Civic Center.  
 
Republicans, on the other hand, were the most knowledgeable. While eight in ten Republicans knew that 
Tualatin lacks a City Hall (81%), fewer than six in ten Democrats (59%) or independent voters (57%) were 
aware.  
 

70%

61%

58%

59%

24%

34%

31%

32%

Police, fire and emergency

Parks & recreation

Library

Sewer & water service

Chart 2
Satisfaction with City Services

Very satisfied Somewhat satisfied Not too satisfied Not at all satisfied Don't know



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  7 

Home owners were also more likely to know that Tualatin doesn’t already have a City Hall (73%), while 
about half of renters knew (51%).  
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 

3.3 SUPPORT FOR CITY HALL & LIBRARY EXPANSION 

A strong majority of voters see the value of a Civic Center in Tualatin, but voters 
are split on whether to support the project.  
Two-thirds of voters (66%) said that a Civic Center, which would include city offices and City Council 
Chambers, would be very or somewhat valuable to Tualatin (Q7).  
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Voters under 45 were particularly likely to see the value of a Civic Center. All voters 18-29 surveyed said 
a Civic Center would be valuable (100%), along with 72% of voters 30-44.  
 
Long-time residents of Tualatin who have lived in the city for more than ten years were less interested; 
61% said a new Civic Center would be valuable. The perceived value of the project also declined with 

Yes
67%

No
30%

Don't 
know
3%

Chart 3
Aware That Tualatin Lacks City Hall

66%

32%

2%

Valuable Not valuable Don't know

Chart 4
Value of Civic Center



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  8 

income. Although 89% of residents with annual incomes of less than $50,000 said the project would be 
valuable, just 51% of residents with annual incomes in excess of $75,000 saw the value.  
 
Voters were split on the importance of accessibility to any future Civic Center (Q8). While 44% of voters 
said it was very or somewhat important to have a Civic Center that is easily accessed by all modes of 
transportation, 49% said it was either not too or not at all important.  
 
A majority of women (52%) and seniors 65 and older (54%) indicated that an easily accessible location 
that can be reached by pedestrians and public transit in addition to cars was important. 
 
When voters were first asked whether they supported building a new Civic Center and expanding the 
existing library, they were evenly split (Q9). In the initial test, 43% of voters said they supported the 
project and 42% said they opposed it. 
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Although a strong majority of voters said a Civic Center would be valuable, fewer voters supported the 
project in the initial test. The discrepancy may due to a number of factors, including satisfaction with city 
services and administration; voters simply may not see any reason to change what appears to be 
working. Furthermore, a lack of knowledge about the current state of city offices, including whether or not 
Tualatin even has a City Hall, may negatively impact support for the Civic Center. 
 
Notably, support for the Civic Center was softer in this initial test than the opposition. While just 17% of 
Tualatin voters strongly support the project, 26% strongly oppose it. Those voters who strongly oppose 
the project are firm in their convictions, as seen in the responses that follow.  
 
Initial support is driven by voters age 30-44 (58%) and seniors 65 and older (53%), as well as Democrats 
(54%). 
 

15% 14%

17%

18%

26%

51%

17% 16%

Chart 5
Support For Civic Center vs. Value

Very valuable

Somewhat valuable

Not too valuable

Not at all valuable

Don't know
26%

Strong support

Somewhat support

Somewhat oppose

Strongly oppose

Don't know

Do you support or oppose building a 
Civic Center and expanding the 
library?

Do you think a Civic Center would 
be valuable?



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  9 

Meanwhile, opposition was highest among those ages 45-64 (54%) and high school graduates (59%).  
 
Voters who initially supported the project were asked their main reasons for support (Q10). Supporters 
were likely to mention the general need for such a facility (22%), as well as the benefits of consolidating 
services (18%). Many voters also mentioned that it would create a stronger community (16%).  

 “So that the city could have an identity.” 

“We need a place to hold meeting for people and events.”  

“The city is growing and everything is all over the place.” 

Support for the library was also cited frequently. Overall, 22% of voters who supported the project 
mentioned the library in their response.  

“I believe the library is one of the most important services provided by the city.”  

“We’ve received a grant for arts development and that would be a wonderful use of 

that money. I’d hate to see the library go, too.”  

Voters who opposed the measure were also asked why (Q11). The most common responses were that 
the new facility is an unnecessary expense (34%) and that it will increase taxes (33%). Others noted that 
they were already satisfied with the current library and didn’t see the need for an expansion (17%).  

“We already have these services.”  

“Who is going to pay for this? I don’t want taxes increased.”  

“The library is relatively new and satisfies the population.”  

Several of the verbatim responses in opposition to the project showed room for additional education to 
the community.  

“I think there are other things more pressing and I don’t understand the need.” 

“We have a city hall already; we don’t need a tax to pay for a new one.”  

3.4 REASONS TO SUPPORT OR OPPOSE 

The reasons to support the project earned middling scores from voters.  
Voters were read a series of statements in support of the proposed Civic Center and library expansion 
and asked whether they were very good, good, poor, or very poor reasons to support the project (Q12-
Q17). 
 
The best of these messages, considered a good or very good reason to support the project by 57% of 
voters, focused on safety. It read: Many of the current city offices, including the Emergency Operations 
Center, are housed in buildings that are not up to code and located in the flood plain. In case of major 
earthquake or flood, these buildings could fail and emergency services could be compromised (Q14).  
 
Opposition even to this highest-rated message was strong. One in five voters said this is a very poor 
reason to support the project (20%), while another 11% said it is a poor reason. 



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  10 

 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
The other reasons to support the proposed project were considered good or very good reasons by about 
half of voters (49-51%).  
 
The soft support for other messages may indicate that voters don’t know much about the issue or the 
need. For example, when voters were asked whether creating additional multipurpose community space 
was a good reason to support the project, less than a majority agreed (49%) (Q15). However, many 
voters may not be aware that there is limited community meeting space in Tualatin, or they may not see 
the need for it.  
 
Interestingly, messages about costs the City incurs, such as leasing buildings, staff time for setting up 
and tearing down City Council meetings, and staff time spent commuting between buildings did not 
resonate particularly well with voters. Additional education on these issues may increase support over 
time if voters begin to see these issues as a form of wasteful government spending rather than just an 
inconvenience for City employees.  
 
The messages in support of the project were best received by Democrats and voters aged 30-44. Overall, 
six in ten Democrats supported the messages, with support for each reason ranging from 57% (Q16) to 
71% (Q17). Voters ages 30-44 were even more supportive, and about seven in ten of these voters said 
each message was a good or very good reason to support the project (68%-77%).  
 

30%

27%

27%

23%

23%

22%

27%

24%

24%

28%

27%

27%

11%

16%

20%

15%

16%

21%

20%

21%

19%

22%

22%

14%

11%

11%

10%

12%

12%

15%

Current offices are in buildings might fail 
during earthquakes or floods

Currently spending $69,000 per year to lease 
office space and set up.

Expanded library would increase access to 
technology for residents

Expanded library would provide adequate 
library administration space

City operations in seven different buildings

Bigger library would provide multipurpose 
space for the community

Chart 6
Reasons to Support Civic Center and Library Expansion

Very good Good Poor Very poor Don't know



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  11 

Republicans gave lower scores than Democrats with regard to each reasons to support the project, but a 
plurality of Republicans said the messages were good or very good reasons to support the project, with 
the exception of one: The expanded library building would create space to administer library programs 
(41% good/very good; 49% poor/very poor) (Q17).  
 
Notably, Republicans were more supportive than independent voters, but they were also more strongly 
opposed. Independent voters were more likely to say they didn’t know whether each message was a 
good reason to support the project or not. Overall, one in three independent voters said they didn’t know if 
each message for a good or poor reason (29-30%).  
 
With two exceptions, voters who have participated in two of the last four recent elections were more 
supportive of the messages than more frequent voters. Voters who participated in two recent elections 
gave a lower score to the statement “City operations are currently housed in seven different buildings” 
than voters who participated in all four recent elections (51% to 56%) (Q13). Additionally, while 51% of 
voters who participated in two recent elections said a good reason to support the project is “The 
expanded library building would create adequate space to administer library programs,” those who voted 
in three recent elections were more likely to say it was a good reason (64%) (Q17).  
 
The reasons to oppose the project performed slightly better.  
Voters were also read a series of statements in opposition to the project and asked to rate them on the 
same scale (Q18-Q23).  
 
Most of the messages in opposition to the project were considered very good or good reasons to oppose 
the project by about half of voters or less. However, a few earned a wider margin of support.  
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

34%

36%

28%

30%

23%

18%

35%

24%

25%

22%

25%

22%

13%

19%

24%

25%

24%

29%

9%

10%

12%

10%

10%

16%

10%

11%

10%

14%

18%

15%

Voters already pay enough in property taxes

There are more important priorities

Voters shouldn't pay; City tore down old 
building 2014

Government does not spend taxpayer dollars 
wisely

City's current offices are adequate already

New Civic Center and library expansion will 
make Tualatin less affordable

Chart 7
Reasons to Oppose Civic Center and Library Expansion

Very good Good Poor Very poor Don't know



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  12 

 
 
The highest rated message, that voters pay enough for property taxes and increasing taxes will put 
additional strain on families in our community, was considered a very good or good reason by nearly 
seven in ten voters (69%) (Q20). A second message was considered very good or good by six in ten 
voters: There are more important priorities in Tualatin than building a new Civic Center and expanding the 
library (60%) (Q19).  
 
A plurality of voters did rate one message as poor: A new Civic Center and library expansion project will 
make Tualatin less affordable for residents and families (45% poor/very poor, 40% good/very good) 
(Q23). 
 
Again, some responses show an opportunity for additional education to the public. Just over half of 
residents said a good reason to oppose the project is that voters shouldn’t bear the cost of a new building 
since the City tore down the old Council building in 2014 (53%) (Q18). Voters may not realize that the old 
Council building did not include adequate space for all city offices.  
 
Furthermore, nearly a majority of voters said a good reason to oppose the project is that the City’s current 
offices are adequate the way they are (48%) (Q21). This could indicate that voters don’t know much 
about the current state of the City’s offices, especially considering this reason garnered the highest “don’t 
know” response, with nearly one in five voters unsure (18%).  
 
Women were more receptive to the messages opposing the project than men. The smallest difference 
was 8 percentage points on the statement that a new Civic Center and library expansion would make 
Tualatin less affordable for residents, where 44% of women said the message was a good reason to 
oppose the project compared with 36% of men (Q23). When read the message that voters pay enough 
for property taxes and increasing taxes will put additional strain on families in our community, the spread 
was 26 percentage points, with 81% of women saying the message was a good reason to oppose the 
project, compared to 55% of men (Q20).  
 
Voters 45-64 were more likely to consider these messages good reasons to oppose the project than 
voters in other age brackets. For example, while 73% of voters 45-64 said a good reason to oppose the 
project was that government does not spend taxpayer dollars wisely, none of the voters under 30 
sampled agreed (0%).  
 
Republicans were more likely to give strong ratings to the reasons to oppose than Democrats, although 
the differences were not always stark. For example, the highest-rated message for Republicans was that 
voters pay enough for property taxes (75%), but nearly as many Democrats agreed (73%) (Q20). 
 
Again, independent voters were the most likely to say they aren’t sure whether the messages are a good 
or poor reason to oppose the project (28%-34% don’t know).  
 
For the most part, the messages were considered more effective as the income level of voters increased. 
For example, when asked about the message that government does not spend taxpayer dollars wisely, 
just 22% of voters making less than $50,000 per year said this was a good reason to oppose the project. 
For voters making between $50,000 and $75,0000 that figure increased to 60%, and increased a second 
time to 64% for those voters making more than $75,000 per year (Q22).  



DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  13 

3.5 SUPPORT FOR CITY HALL & LIBRARY EXPANSION—RETEST 

After hearing messages both in support of and in opposition to the project, voters were asked again 
whether they supported it (Q24).  

Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

Opinions did not shift dramatically, although opposition grew. A majority of voters (51%) said they 
opposed the project, with over one in three voters strongly opposed (34%) (Q24). On the other hand, 39% 
of voters supported the project, with 18% strongly in support. 

Overall, there was not a significant difference between the voters who heard the support messages first 
when compared the voters who heard oppose messages first. Of voters who heard support messages 
first, 44% supported the project in retest and 53% opposed it. Of the voters who heard oppose messages 
first, 34% supported the project and 49% opposed it. These differences are not statistically significant.  

Voters who were undecided in the first test were likely to remain undecided (50%), but many became 
opposed to the project after learning more about it (37%). 

The retest lacked majority support from key groups of supporters. Fewer than half of voters 30-44 (44%) 
and seniors (47%) supported the project in the retest, and Democrats were more likely to oppose the 
project (50%) than support it (46%).

3.6 CITY HALL LOCATIONS 

Voters were presented with two different locations for a potential Civic Center. Each location included an 
expansion of the existing library as part of the project.  

A plurality of voters supported the Police Facility as the site of a new Civic 
Center. 

18% 21% 16% 34% 11%After messages in support 
and opposition

Initial test

Chart 8
Support For Project Before and After Messaging Statements

Strong spport Somewhat support Somewhat oppose Strong oppose Don't know



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  14 

Two-thirds of voters said the fact that the City of Tualatin already owns the [Police Facility] land, which 
saves taxpayer money was a good or very good reason to support that location (Q26). About six in ten 
voters also thought it was a good reason to support this location because most city services, including the 
police department, would be in the same location (Q27). 
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Democrats were the most likely to respond to the message about projected facility needs through 2025 
(61% good/very good reason) (Q25), while Republicans were more likely to say the location which would 
include most city services, including the police department as a good or very good reason to support the 
project (63%). Nonetheless, both parties gave the highest ratings to the message that highlighted saving 
taxpayer dollars (Democrats: 67%, Republicans: 74%).  
 
Voters who have lived in Tualatin for more than 10 years were more likely to see these messages as 
good reasons to support the project than voters who have lived in Tualatin for a shorter amount of time. 
Additionally, homeowners gave higher ratings to the messages than renters. For example, 70% of long-
time Tualatin residents said building the Civic Center on land already owned by Tualatin was a good 
reason to support the project, compared with 55% of voters who have lived in the city for fewer than five 
years. Similarly, 72% of homeowners said this was a good reason to support the project, compared with 
49% of renters.  

Overall, a plurality of voters supported the Police Facility as the location of a new Civic Center, at a bond 
rate of about $3 per month for an average home in Tualatin (49%) (Q28-29). More than four in ten voters 
opposed the project (44%), and about one in three were strongly opposed to the project (32%). 
 

41%

31%

20%

25%

27%

37%

13%

15%

15%

12%

16%

19%

10%

11%

11%

The City already owns the 
land

Most city services would be 
in the same location

30,000 sq. ft. would meet 
needs through 2025

Chart 9
Reasons to Choose Police Facility

Very good Good Poor Very poor Don’t know



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  15 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Support for the Police Facility as the site of a future Civic Center came from the same demographic 
groups that had supported the project in the initial test, namely voters 30-44 and Democrats. Voters 30-44 
were the most supportive, with 68% saying they supported the project at this location. Support among this 
group was also fairly strong; one-third of these voters said they strongly supported the project at this 
location (33%).  
 
A majority of Democrats also supported the project (53%), although a healthy proportion of Democrats 
strongly opposed the project (36%). Republicans were not much different, with 49% supporting the 
project at the Police Facility while 48% opposed it.  

Voters who have lived in Tualatin for more than ten years were also more likely to support the project 
(52%) than oppose it (45%). Voters who have lived in the area for less time were less sure about the 
project. Among voters who have lived in Tualatin for fewer than five years, 40% said they supported the 
project, 29% opposed it, and one in three were undecided (31%).  

  

23% 25% 4% 8% 32% 7%Police facility location

Chart 10
Support for Civic Center at Police Facility with Library Expansion

Stongly support Somewhat support Lean support Lean oppose
Somewhat oppose Strongly oppose Don't know



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  16 

A majority of voters opposed creating a Civic Center at Tualatin Commons.  
Voters did not respond strongly to the messages in support of building a Civic Center at Tualatin 
Commons.  
 
A scant majority of voters said that meeting facility needs through 2025 and beyond was a good or very 
good reason to support the project (50%) (Q30). The two other provided reasons failed to earn positive 
ratings from half of voters. 
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Voters were told that the facility would include ground-floor retail space that could generate additional 
revenue, but fewer than half found this compelling (46%) (Q31). Additionally, voters were told that the 
additional space could be leased for wrap-around social services for families and children or be used to 
accommodate future growth (Q32). Again, less than half of voters said this was a good or very good 
reason to support the project (44%). 
 
Additional voter education about the types of social services provided may increase voters support for this 
benefit. Furthermore, facts regarding the potential revenue that could be generated from retail space may 
resonate with voters concerned with wasteful spending and increased taxes. 
 
Again, voters ages 30-44 were the most receptive to these messages (52-65%), and a majority of 
Democrats found each message a good reason to support the project (53-55%). 
 
  

21%

17%

12%

29%

29%

32%

17%

16%

24%

23%

29%

22%

10%

10%

10%

44,000 sq. ft. would meet 
needs through 2025 and 

beyond

Includes ground floor retail 
to generate revenue

Additonal space could be 
leased for social services

Chart 11
Reasons to Choose Tualatin Commons Site

Very good Good Poor Very poor Don’t know



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  17 

Overall, a majority of voters opposed the project at the Tualatin Commons site (57%). The strong 
opposition alone (40%) matched voter support (40%).  
 

 
Source: DHM Research, June 2016 

 
Although a majority of Democrats and voters ages 30-44 said the messages in support of the Tualatin 
Commons site were good reasons to support that location, less than half of voters in each group 
supported the Tualatin Commons location in the final test (Democrats: 49%, 30-44: 48%) (Q33-Q34). 
 
With respect to this location, the most supportive demographic groups were voters under 30 (69%), 
voters who have lived in Tualatin for fewer than five years (66%), and renters (62%). Voters who have 
participated in two of the last four elections were also more likely to support this location (55%) than those 
who have voted in three (20%) or four (28%) of the last four elections. Additionally, voters making less 
than $50,000 per year were supportive of this location (58%).  
  

12%

23%

28%

25% 4%

17%

8%

40%

32%

3%

7%

Commons location

Police facility location

Chart 12
Comparison of Police Facility and Commons Location 

Stongly support Somewhat support Lean support
Lean oppose Somewhat oppose Strongly oppose



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  18 

Appendix 4 
 

Tualatin City Hall & Library Bond Survey 
May 23-26, 2016; Likely Tualatin Voters 

N=172; margin of error +/- 7.5% 
18 minutes 

DHM Research 
Project #00408 

 
Hi, my name is _____. I’m with an opinion research firm in Oregon. I’m not selling anything. I have some 
questions about issues that are important to the City of Tualatin. This shouldn’t take too long, and your 
responses will help improve services in your community. 
 
WARM UP & GENERAL MOOD 
 

1. All things considered, would you say that things in the City of Tualatin are headed in the right 
direction, or would you say they are off on the wrong track? 

Response Category  N=172 
Right direction 71% 
Wrong track 10% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 19% 

 
Are you very satisfied, somewhat satisfied, not too satisfied, or not all satisfied the following city services 
in Tualatin? (randomize Q2-Q5) 

Response Category 
Very 

satisfied 
Somewhat 
satisfied 

Not too 
satisfied 

Not at all 
satisfied 

Don’t 
know 

2. Police, fire, and emergency services 70% 24% 2% 0% 5% 
3. Parks and recreation 61% 34% 3% 0% 2% 
4. Library 58% 31% 3% 1% 7% 
5. Sewer and water service 59% 32% 8% 1% <1% 

 
AWARENESS OF CITY HALL ISSUES 
 

6. Do you know that the City of Tualatin does not have a City Hall building or Civic Center?  
Response Category  N=172 
Yes 67% 
No 30% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 3% 

 
  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  19 

7. Do you think a Civic Center, which would include city offices and City Council Chambers, in 
Tualatin would be very valuable, somewhat valuable, not too valuable, or not at all valuable? 

Response Category N=172 
Very valuable 16% 
Somewhat valuable 51% 
Not too valuable 18% 
Not at all valuable 14% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know  2% 

 
8. Is it very important, somewhat important, not too important, or not at all important to you that 

Tualatin have a Civic Center that is easily accessed by cars, pedestrians, and public transit? 
Response Category N=172 
Very important 22% 
Somewhat important 22% 
Not too important 26% 
Not at all important 23% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know  7% 

 
SUPPORT FOR CITY HALL & LIBRARY EXPANSION 
 

9. The City of Tualatin is considering building a new Civic Center and expanding the existing library. 
Based on what you know now, do you support or oppose this project? (wait, ask 
strongly/somewhat) 

Response Category N=172 
Strong support 17% 
Somewhat support 26% 
Somewhat oppose 17% 
Strong oppose 26% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 15% 

 
10. (If “Support” to Q9) Why do you support the project? (OPEN) 

Response Category N=74 
Important/needed 22% 
Consolidation of services 18% 
Good for the community/city 16% 
Support of Civic center 12% 
Support for library 12% 
General support 11% 
Library expansion 10% 
Future growth 7% 
Concern of tax increase 4% 
Children/Education 4% 
Don’t know <1% 

 
  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  20 

11. (If “Oppose” to Q9) Why do you oppose the project? (OPEN) 
Response Category N=73 
Don’t need it/unnecessary 34% 
Will increase taxes/expensive 33% 
Current library is new/good as is 17% 
Other priorities are more important 7% 
General oppose 5% 
Other vacant building could be used 5% 
Waste of taxpayer money 4% 
Don’t know 1% 

 
REASONS TO SUPPORT/OPPOSE CITY HALL & LIBRARY PROJECT 
 
(Rotate support and oppose statements) 
 
Here are some reasons people have given to support the proposed Civic Center and library expansion 
project. For each, do you think it is a very good, good, poor, or very poor reason to support the project? 
(Randomize Q12-Q17) 

Response Category 
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

12. The City of Tualatin currently spends $55,000 per year to 
lease office space for city offices and $14,000 per year in 
staff time to set up and take down equipment for Council 
meetings and Municipal Court. A new Civic Center would 
eliminate these costs. 

27% 24% 16% 21% 11% 

13. City operations are currently housed in seven different 
buildings. City staff must commute between the buildings, 
and residents must visit several locations to conduct 
business. 

23% 27% 16% 22% 12% 

14. Many of the current city offices, including the Emergency 
Operations Center, are housed in buildings that are not up 
to code and located in the flood plain. In case of a major 
earthquake or flood, these buildings could fail and 
emergency services could be compromised. 

30% 27% 11% 20% 11% 

15. The expanded library building would create additional 
multipurpose community space that could be used by 
residents and community groups.   

22% 27% 21% 14% 15% 

16. The expanded library building would increase access to 
technology and hands-on learning opportunities for youth 
and residents. 

27% 24% 20% 19% 10% 

17. The current library space is small and staff and volunteers 
must share workspaces. The expanded library building 
would create adequate space to administer library 
programs. 

23% 28% 15% 22% 12% 

 
 
  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  21 

Here are some reasons people have given to oppose the proposed Civic Center and library expansion 
project. For each, do you think it is a very good, good, poor, or very poor reason to oppose the project? 
(Randomize Q18-Q23) 

Response Category 
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

18. Voters shouldn’t bear the cost of a new building since the 
City tore down the old Council building in 2014. 28% 25% 24% 12% 10% 

19. There are more important priorities in Tualatin than 
building a new Civic Center and expanding the library, and 
the City should focus on those priorities. 

36% 24% 19% 10% 11% 

20. Voters pay enough for property taxes and increasing taxes 
will put additional strain on families in our community. 34% 35% 13% 9% 10% 

21. The City’s current offices are adequate the way they are.  23% 25% 24% 10% 18% 
22. Government does not spend taxpayer dollars wisely. 30% 22% 25% 10% 14% 
23. A new Civic Center and library expansion project will make 

Tualatin less affordable for residents and families.  18% 22% 29% 16% 15% 

 
SUPPORT FOR CITY HALL & LIBRARY EXPANSION RE-TEST 
 
Now that you’ve heard more about the new Civic Center and library expansion, I’d like to ask you about 
the project again.  
 

24. The City of Tualatin is considering building a new Civic Center and expanding the existing library. 
The city estimates of the project would range from $24-32 million, depending on the location. 
Based on what you know now, do you support or oppose this project? (wait, ask 
strongly/somewhat)   

Response Category N=172 
Strong support 18% 
Somewhat support 21% 
Somewhat oppose 16% 
Strong oppose 34% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 11% 

 
CITY HALL LOCATIONS  
 
The City is currently considering two different locations where a new Civic Center could be built. I will now 
read to you some specifics about each location. Each proposed option would include building a new Civic 
Center and library expansion. 
 
(Rotate Police Facility and Commons statements) 
 
  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  22 

Police Facility 
 
One location (or, “the other location”) the City is considering is at the site of the existing Police 
Department. I will read you a list of statements about this location. For each, tell me if you think it is a very 
good, good, poor, or very poor reason to choose the Police Department site as the location of the new 
Civic Center.  

Response Category 
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

25. This facility would be about 30,000 square feet 
and provide enough space to meet projected 
facility needs through 2025. 

20% 37% 15% 19% 11% 

26. The City of Tualatin already owns this land, which 
saves taxpayer money. 41% 25% 13% 12% 10% 

27. At this location, most city services, including the 
police department, would be in the same location.  31% 27% 15% 16% 11% 

 
To build a new Civic Center at this location and expand the existing library, the property tax rate for this 
bond is expected to be $0.18 per $1,000 of assessed value. For an average home in Tualatin with an 
assessed value of $200,000, the police facility option would cost about $3 per month. 
 

28. Based on what you know now, would you support or oppose the police facility as the site of a new 
Civic Center? (Wait, ask strongly/somewhat) 

Response Category N=172 
Strong support 23% 
Somewhat support 25% 
Somewhat oppose 8% 
Strong oppose 32% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 12% 

 

29. (If “Don’t know” to Q23) Do you lean toward supporting or opposing the police facility location? 
Response Category N=20 
Lean support 5% 
Lean oppose 31% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 64% 

 
Q28 and Q29 combined 

Response Category N=172 
Total support 49% 

Strongly 23% 
Somewhat 25% 
Lean 1% 

Total oppose 44% 
Lean 4% 
Somewhat 8% 
Strongly 32% 

Don’t know 7% 
 
 
  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  23 

Tualatin Commons 

The other location (or, “one location”) the City is considering is at the Tualatin Commons. I will read you 
a list of statements about this location. For each, tell me if you think it is a very good, good, poor, or very 
poor reason to choose the Commons site as the location of a new Civic Center.  

Response Category 
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

30. This facility would be about 44,000 square feet 
and would provide enough space to meet facility 
needs through 2025 and beyond.  

21% 29% 17% 23% 10% 

31. The facility would include ground-floor retail space 
that could generate additional revenue. 17% 29% 16% 29% 10% 

32. The additional space could be leased for wrap-
around social services for families and children or 
be used to accommodate future growth. 

12% 32% 24% 22% 10% 

 
To build a new Civic Center at this location and expand the existing library, the property tax rate for this 
bond is expected to be $0.29 per $1,000 of assessed value. For an average home in Tualatin with an 
assessed value of $200,000, the commons site option would cost about $5 per month. 
 

33. Based on what you know now, would you support or oppose the Commons site as the site of the 
new Civic Center? (support/oppose; wait, ask strongly/somewhat) 

Response Category N=172 
Strong support 12% 
Somewhat support 28% 
Somewhat oppose 17% 
Strong oppose 40% 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 3% 

 
34. (If “don’t know” to Q23) Do you lean toward supporting or opposing the Commons location? 

Response Category N=5 
Lean support -- 
Lean oppose -- 
(DON’T READ) Don’t know 100% 

 
Q33 and Q34 combined 

Response Category N=172 
Total support 40% 

Strongly 12% 
Somewhat 28% 
Lean 0% 

Total oppose 57% 
Lean 0% 
Somewhat 17% 
Strongly 40% 

Don’t know 3% 
 
  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  24 

DEMOGRAPHICS 
 
These last few questions are for statistical purposes and ensure that we talk to a representative group of 
Tualatin residents.  
 

35. Gender (record from sample) 
Response Category  N=172 
Male 48% 
Female 52% 

 
36. Age (record from sample) 

Response Category  N=172 
18-29 15% 
30-44 26% 
45-64 43% 
65+ 16% 

 
37. Area of City/Voter Precinct (record from sample) 

Response Category  N=172 
Precinct 252 13% 
Precinct 394 1% 
Precinct 420 24% 
Precinct 423 21% 
Precinct 428 6% 
Precinct 433 11% 
Precinct 436 25% 

 
38. Voting History (record from sample) 

Response Category N=172 
2 of 4 51% 
3 of 4 22% 
4 of 4 26% 

 
39. Party (record from sample) 

Response Category  N=172 
Democrat 38% 
Republican 38% 
Independent/non-affiliated/other 24% 

 
40. How many years have you lived in the City of Tualatin? (OPEN) 

Response Category  N=172 
0-5 years 18% 
6-10 years 17% 
More than 10 years 64% 
Mean 15.2 

 
  



 

   
DHM RESEARCH  | CITY OF TUALATIN CIVIC CENTER & LIBRARY BOND  |  MAY 2016  25 

41. Do you own your home, rent, or something else? 
Response Category  N=172 
Rent 27% 
Own 71% 
Something else 2% 
(DON’T READ) Refused 1% 

 
42. What is the highest level of education you have achieved? 

Response Category  N=172 
Less than high school 0% 
High school diploma 11% 
Some college 21% 
College degree 43% 
Graduate/professional school 25% 
(DON’T READ) Refused 1% 

 
43. Which category best describes your 2015 gross annual income, before taxes? Remember to 

include everyone living in your household. Your best estimate will do.  
Response Category  N=172 
Less than  $25,000 11% 
$25,000 to less than $50,000 16% 
$50,000 to less than $75,000 12% 
$75,000 to less than $100,000 18% 
$100,000 to less than $150,000 11% 
$150,000 or more  20% 
(DON’T READ) Refused 12% 

 
44. Which of the following best describes your race or ethnicity? (allow multiple responses) 

Response Category  N=172 
African American/Black 2% 
Asian/Pacific Islander 3% 
Hispanic/Latino 0% 
Native American/American Indian 1% 
White/Caucasian 92% 
Other 2% 
(DON’T READ) Refused 1% 

 
 



82.27% 450

14.63% 80

3.11% 17

Q1 Did you know that the City of Tualatin
does not currently have a City Hall building

or Civic Center?
Answered: 547 Skipped: 0

Total 547

Yes

No

Don't Know

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Yes

No

Don't Know

1 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



31.44% 172

32.72% 179

20.29% 111

15.54% 85

Q2 Do you think a Civic Center, which
would include City offices and City Council

Chambers, in Tualatin would be:
Answered: 547 Skipped: 0

Total 547

Very Valuable

Somewhat
Valuable

Not Too
Valuable

Not At All
Valuable

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Very Valuable

Somewhat Valuable

Not Too Valuable

Not At All Valuable

2 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



37.48% 205

24.13% 132

19.38% 106

19.01% 104

Q3 How important is it to you to have a
Civic Center accessible by cars,
pedestrians, and public transit?

Answered: 547 Skipped: 0

Total 547

Very Important

Somewhat
Important

Not Too
Important

Not At All
Important

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Very Important

Somewhat Important

Not Too Important

Not At All Important

3 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



Q4 Based on what you know about the
City's current facilities, rank the below

items according to what you believe are the
most important reasons to build a new Civic

Center and expand the library:
Answered: 515 Skipped: 32

25.20%
128

28.54%
145

31.69%
161

14.57%
74

 
508

 
2.10

28.77%
147

20.55%
105

22.90%
117

27.79%
142

 
511

 
2.21

16.63%
85

23.68%
121

24.66%
126

35.03%
179

 
511

 
2.61

32.94%
169

17.93%
92

25.34%
130

23.78%
122

 
513

 
2.07

29.82%
153

19.49%
100

23.20%
119

27.49%
141

 
513

 
2.19

37.23%
191

22.61%
116

21.44%
110

18.71%
96

 
513

 
1.84

29.18%
150

20.62%
106

22.18%
114

28.02%
144

 
514

 
2.20

The City of
Tualatin...

City
operations a...

Many of the
current city...

The expanded
library...

The expanded
library...

The current
library spac...

Residents and
businesses m...

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

 Not
Important

Somewhat
Important

Important Very
Important

Total Weighted
Average

The City of Tualatin currently spends $55,000 per year to lease office space for
City offices 

City operations are currently housed in seven different buildings

Many of the current city offices, including the Emergency Operations Center, are
housed in buildings that are not up to code and located in the flood plain.

The expanded library building would create additional multipurpose community
space that could be used by residents and community groups

The expanded library building would increase access to technology and hands-on
learning opportunities for youth and residents

The current library space is small and currently staff, students, and volunteers
must share workspaces.

Residents and businesses must visit several different buildings to conduct
business

4 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



38.88% 201

39.46% 204

21.66% 112

0.00% 0

Q5 The City of Tualatin is considering
building a new Civic Center and expanding
the existing library. Estimates of the project
range from $24-32 million, depending on the
location. Based on this information, would

you support this project?
Answered: 517 Skipped: 30

Total 517

Yes

No

Need more
information

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Yes

No

Need more information

Other (please specify)

5 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



20.98% 103

34.42% 169

14.26% 70

30.35% 149

Q6 Based on what you know about this 
project site (Police Site), how would you 
describe your support for this location?

Answered: 491 Skipped: 56

Total 491

Strongly
Support

Support

Somewhat Oppose

Oppose

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Support

Support

Somewhat Oppose

Oppose

6 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



24.02% 117

20.94% 102

17.45% 85

37.58% 183

Q7 Based on what you know about this 
project site (Commons Site), how would you 

describe your support for this location?
Answered: 487 Skipped: 60

Total 487

Strongly
Support

Support

Somewhat Oppose

Oppose

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Support

Support

Somewhat Oppose

Oppose

7 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



Q8 Here are some reasons people have
given to oppose the proposed Civic Center
and library expansion project. Rank each

reason
Answered: 201 Skipped: 346

4.00%
8

18.50%
37

18.00%
36

52.00%
104

7.50%
15

 
200

 
3.40

0.00%
0

8.00%
16

19.00%
38

65.50%
131

7.50%
15

 
200

 
3.73

1.49%
3

8.96%
18

15.92%
32

66.17%
133

7.46%
15

 
201

 
3.69

1.49%
3

20.90%
42

28.86%
58

39.80%
80

8.96%
18

 
201

 
3.34

0.51%
1

16.16%
32

22.22%
44

52.02%
103

9.09%
18

 
198

 
3.53

10.15%
20

18.27%
36

16.75%
33

44.16%
87

10.66%
21

 
197

 
3.27

Voters
shouldn't be...

There are more
important...

Voters pay
enough for...

The City's
current offi...

Government
does not spe...

A new Civic
Center and...

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

 Not At All
True

Somewhat
True

True Very
True

(no
label)

Total Weighted
Average

Voters shouldn't bear the cost of a new building since the City tore down
the old City Council building in 2014

There are more important priorities in Tualatin than building a new Civic
Center and expanding the library

Voters pay enough for property taxes and increases taxes puts additional
strain on families in our community

The City's current offices are adequate the way they are

Government does not spend taxpayer dollars wisely

A new Civic Center and library expansion project will make Tualatin less
affordable for residents and families

8 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



Q9 If you have any additional comments or
feedback, you can share that with us here:

Answered: 0 Skipped: 547

9 / 9

Bringing Tualatin Together



!

! !

CIVIC CENTER FOCUS 
GROUP 

"# $%&!'(!)'*+,-+.!/0"1!2344'&5!
6+78!/1!
)'8!/!
!

/# 9:;<:!7;&+=!;>!3??4;<3-4+5!
@',,'(78!/A!
$'4;<+8!/!



 
 

2 

GENERAL MOOD 
 
1. All things considered, would you say that things in the City of Tualatin are headed in the right direction, or would you 

say they are off on the wrong track? 
 

Response  
Right direction 83% 

Wrong track 7% 
 

Don’t know 10% 
 
COMMENTS FROM FOCUS GROUPS: 
- Tualatin is managed as a bigger city 
- Tualatin has improved so much over the last 10 years! 
- Lived here 44 years; love the place; it’s all great! 
- Love what’s happening in Tualatin; nationally recognized 
- Tualatin has done a good job managing growth 
- Feel like the public is included and involved – the City seeks the public’s input on things 

 
Please rate your satisfaction with the following city services in Tualatin? 
 

Response 
Very 

satisfied 
Somewhat 
satisfied 

Not too 
satisfied 

Not at all 
satisfied 

Don’t 
know 

2. Police, fire, and emergency services 90% 10%    
3. Parks and recreation 80% 13% 7%   
4. Library 83% 17%    
5. Sewer and water service 73% 23%   4%  

 
COMMENTS FROM FOCUS GROUPS: 

- Lots of people don’t know the Library is too small 
- Would like to see an expansion of the Library 
- Lack of meeting rooms and shelf space 
- Tualatin’s biggest need is a multi-generational facility 
- The library definitely needs more space 
- Traffic is challenging 
- Dissatisfied that there is no downtown; “amazing” town, just wish there was a “downtown” 
- Challenging to get across TSF – not very walkable; traffic lights don’t work 
- Love the Tualatin newsletter 
- “It irritates me that my neighbors are so cheap” 
- “I love Tualatin; I’m a big fan!”  



 
 

3 

 
AWARENESS OF CITY HALL ISSUES 
 
6. Do you know that the City of Tualatin does not have a City Hall building or Civic Center?  

 

Response   
Yes 100% 
No  
Don’t know  

 
7. Do you think a Civic Center, which would include city offices and City Council Chambers, in Tualatin would be very 

valuable, somewhat valuable, not too valuable, or not at all valuable? 
 

Response  
Very valuable 76% 
Somewhat valuable 17% 
Not too valuable 3% 
Not at all valuable 3% 
Don’t know   

 

8. Is it very important, somewhat important, not too important, or not at all important to you that Tualatin have a Civic 
Center that is easily accessed by cars, pedestrians, and public transit? 
 

Response Category  
Very important 77% 
Somewhat important 13% 
Not too important 7% 
Not at all important 3% 
Don’t know   

 
COMMENTS FROM FOCUS GROUPS: 

- City offices aren’t logical and not very well marked 
- Need to define Civic Center; it is unclear what we are building – is it a performing arts center, a city hall, a 

recreation center? 
- When I think of a Civic Center, I think of something big; when I think of a City Hall, I think something much more 

focused and specific. 
- Consolidation is a good thing 
- We need a single point of citizen contact 
- Accessibility is very important, especially for a Civic Center; it should be optimized for people who are not familiar 

with where they are going. 
- Parking is really important 
- Confused by the term “Civic Center”; the building should only be city offices, not a performing space. 



 
 

4 

SUPPORT FOR CITY HALL & LIBRARY EXPANSION 

 
9. The City of Tualatin is considering building a new Civic Center and expanding the existing library. Based on what you 

know now, do you support or oppose this project?  
 

Response   
Strong support 80% 
Somewhat support 17% 
Somewhat oppose  
Strong oppose 3% 
Don’t know  

 
10. (If “Support” to Q9) Why do you support the project? (OPEN) 

 
Response  
2-Ease of access to City Offices 
16-Expanded library services 
6-Public meeting spaces 
11-Efficiency of services 
4-Bring all city business together in one place 
3-City needs to have a central location for people to identify with; it is very 
important to have a vibrant civic center and create a downtown 
atmosphere 
Need a suitable Council Chambers 
We can expect future growth; a civic center helps sere such growth 
It is needed 
2-There is no “place” or center in Tualatin; a civic center in the right 
location would define downtown Tualatin 
I don’t even know where all City services are housed now 
The Library is continuing to advance and has a valuable impact on our 
community; it also provides meeting space 
2-A Civic Center is needed 
Need to finish the commons; will energize that area 

 
11. (If “Oppose” to Q9) Why do you oppose the project? (OPEN) 

 
Response  
Is this more ego than operational necessity? 
We just built a new library a few years back; what we need is a multi-
generational community center 
Not sure that a Civic Center is all that necessary 
 
 
 

 

  



 
 

5 

REASONS TO SUPPORT/OPPOSE CITY HALL & LIBRARY PROJECT 
 
Here are some reasons people have given to support the proposed Civic Center and library expansion project. For each, 
do you think it is a very good, good, poor, or very poor reason to support the project?  
 

Response  
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

12. The City of Tualatin currently spends $55,000 per year to 
lease office space for city offices and $14,000 per year in 
staff time to set up and take down equipment for Council 
meetings and Municipal Court. A new Civic Center would 
eliminate these costs. 

60% 40%    

- The numbers are surprisingly low 
- Hard to know what the $55,000 and the $14,000 translate to in context of a $24 million building 
- The message should be that Tualatin should not be wasting tax payer dollars on renting space 
- Question about how the money the City would save would be spent 
- Saving $$ is a really good thing 

13. City operations are currently housed in seven different 
buildings. City staff must commute between the buildings, 
and residents must visit several locations to conduct 
business. 

90% 10%    

- This is a very strong message 
- This feels very compelling 

14. Many of the current city offices, including the Emergency 
Operations Center, are housed in buildings that are not up 
to code and located in the flood plain. In case of a major 
earthquake or flood, these buildings could fail and 
emergency services could be compromised. 

67% 30%   3% 

- Should show all of the bad things about each of the existing buildings 
- This is a great hook; we are already working on being prepared throughout the city 

15. The expanded library building would create additional 
multipurpose community space that could be used by 
residents and community groups.   

73% 13% 7% 3% 3% 

- Not a strong selling point for some 
- Having the Library occupy the entire building makes sense and resonates 
- Should be multi-generational space 

16. The expanded library building would increase access to 
technology and hands-on learning opportunities for youth 
and residents. 

64% 23% 10% 3%  

- This resonates; would speak to a number of people 
17. The current library space is small and staff and volunteers 

must share workspaces. The expanded library building 
would create adequate space to administer library 
programs. 

63% 17% 17%  3% 

- It’s so small we don’t have room to upgrade to an automatic self-check in system 
- This isn’t a strong argument; it’s efficient to be small; so many workers are virtual anyway 

FOCUS GROUP COMMENTS: 

- Police bond is expiring; that should be talked about 
- Interest rates are quite low; that should be talked about 
- Remind people of the low tax base 
- Problems are not going away; it will never get cheaper to do this  



 
 

6 

Here are some reasons people have given to oppose the proposed Civic Center and library expansion project. For each, 
do you think it is a very good, good, poor, or very poor reason to oppose the project?  
 

Response  
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

18. Voters shouldn’t bear the cost of a new building 
since the City tore down the old Council building in 
2014. 

3% 7% 33% 54% 3% 

- This decision was in the past; best decision at the time; move on 
- This is dumb; building a centralized City Hall is not a new idea 

19. There are more important priorities in Tualatin than 
building a new Civic Center and expanding the 
library, and the City should focus on those 
priorities. 

3% 10% 33% 37% 17% 

- What are the other priorities? 
- Should try to link this together with what the other priorities are and how the Civic Center would 

help advance those priorities 
20. Voters pay enough for property taxes and 

increasing taxes will put additional strain on 
families in our community. 

17% 17% 33% 26% 7% 

- Definitely resonates with people. 
21. The City’s current offices are adequate the way 

they are.   3% 13% 71% 13% 

- Poor message; we’ve been talking about this for a long time. 
22. Government does not spend taxpayer dollars 

wisely.  13.5% 13.5% 59.5% 13.5% 

23. A new Civic Center and library expansion project 
will make Tualatin less affordable for residents and 
families.  

3% 13% 47% 27% 10% 

 

COMMENTS FROM FOCUS GROUPS: 
§ Talk about how this bond will expire eventually; it won’t go forever 
§ There is confusion about Assessed Value versus Market Value 

 
  



 
 

7 

SUPPORT FOR CITY HALL & LIBRARY EXPANSION RE-TEST 
 
Now that you’ve heard more about the new Civic Center and library expansion, let’s revisit the project. 
 
24. The City of Tualatin is considering building a new Civic Center and expanding the existing library. The city estimates 

of the project would range from $24-32 million, depending on the location. Based on what you know now, do you 
support or oppose this project? 
 

Response   
Strong support 77% 
Somewhat support 20% 
Somewhat oppose  
Strong oppose 3% 
Don’t know  

 
  



 
 

8 

CITY HALL LOCATIONS  
 
The City is currently considering two different locations where a new Civic Center could be built. Here are  some specifics 
about each location. Each proposed option would include building a new Civic Center and library expansion. 
 
Police Facility 
 
One location the City is considering is at the site of the existing Police Department. Following is a list of statements about 
this location. For each, do you think it is a very good, good, poor, or very poor reason to choose the Police Department 
site as the location of the new Civic Center.  
 

Response  
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

25. This facility would be about 30,000 square feet 
and provide enough space to meet projected 
facility needs through 2025. 

30% 50% 10% 10%  

- 2025 is confusing; why would we build a building that is outsized in 9 years? 
26. The City of Tualatin already owns this land, which 

saves taxpayer money. 57% 23% 17% 3%  

- This is a big plus for people 
27. At this location, most city services, including the 

police department, would be in the same location.  44% 40% 6.5% 6.5% 3% 

 
To build a new Civic Center at this location and expand the existing library, the property tax rate for this bond is expected 
to be $0.18 per $1,000 of assessed value. For an average home in Tualatin with an assessed value of $200,000, the 
police facility option would cost about $3 per month. 
 
28. Based on what you know now, would you support or oppose the police facility as the site of a new Civic Center? 

 
Response   
Strong support 44% 
Somewhat support 23% 
Somewhat oppose 10% 
Strong oppose 23% 
Don’t know  

 

COMMENTS FROM FOCUS GROUPS: 

- There is an extremely long list of problems associated with putting the Civic Center on the Police site 
- This site does not feel centralized 
- This is a terrible idea; so inaccessible 
- Access is such an issue on this site 
- What about buying the little red house next to the Police Department so there could be another access point? 
- It is really hard to get in and out of this site 
- Like that it’s the more economical option 
- Price differential isn’t that great and we’d be limiting our long-term options 
- Law enforcement needs to be separate for a variety of reasons  

 

  



 
 

9 

Commons 

The other location the City is considering is at the Tualatin Commons. Here is a list of statements about this location. 
Please rate each as a very good, good, poor, or very poor reason to choose the Commons site as the location of a new 
Civic Center.  

Response  
Very 
good Good Poor 

Very 
poor 

Don’t 
know 

29. This facility would be about 44,000 square feet 
and would provide enough space to meet facility 
needs through 2025 and beyond.  

70% 27% 3%   

30. The facility would include ground-floor retail space 
that could generate additional revenue. 67% 23% 10%   

- This doesn’t feel like a compelling reason; why is the City using my taxes to make 
more money? 

- Seems risky; don’t count on always having it leased/rented 
- Rental is a big if – don’t want to count on it 

31. The additional space could be leased for wrap-
around social services for families and children or 
be used to accommodate future growth. 

70% 20% 7% 3%  

 
To build a new Civic Center at this location and expand the existing library, the property tax rate for this bond is expected 
to be $0.29 per $1,000 of assessed value. For an average home in Tualatin with an assessed value of $200,000, the 
commons site option would cost about $5 per month. 
 
32. Based on what you know now, would you support or oppose the Commons site as the site of the new Civic Center? 

 
Response   
Strong support 60% 
Somewhat support 30% 
Somewhat oppose 3% 
Strong oppose 7% 
Don’t know  

 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE FOCUS GROUPS: 
- Traffic at the Commons site seems like a problem; there’s so much traffic in the Martinazzi/Seneca street area now. 
- Like that public transit is available to this site 
- This site has the greatest potential 
- This would be “such a lovely thing” it’s truly a town square 
- This would get more people to the Commons  



 
 

10 

Is there anything else you would like to share regarding this project? 
 

Response  
I would like to confirm why the Aspen Building preferred by the earlier committee is not being 
considered  
Cost projections – do those estimates include ramp up time to lease extra space and sot to 
maintain or carry until excess space is leased? 
Consideration should have been given to add additional floors to the Commons site which 
would house affordable housing rental units. 
Tualatin is ready to wisely grow up; 6 stories with apartments above office space – another 
income source; affordable housing in the greater Portland area is a crisis; Tualatin should help 
Concerned that we are taking commercial property off tax roles; will city offices here help or 
hurt the businesses on the lake 
Main floor of the Civic Center should incorporate historic displays about Tualatin and perhaps 
Chamber visitors center 
The Tualatin Commons site would create a very unique downtown; a big plus for the 
community 
The Commons area is underutilized; I believe the Civic Center could revitalize this area 
City services should b e consolidated in location; however, there should be adequate distance 
between the Police station and other city services 
I am VERY in favor of the Commons Site!! 
Get it done! 
People are afraid of taxes going up 

 

COMMENTS FROM FOCUS GROUPS: 
- There should be some clarity around the fact that the Library is not going away.  There was some confusion about 
what was happening with the Library when the new Civic Center was built and how it would fit into the new building. 
- Would vote no for Police but would campaign for the Commons site. 
- Strong support for either option – get’er done  



 
 

11 

DEMOGRAPHICS 
 
33. Gender 

Response   
Male 43% 
Female 57% 

 
34. Age 

Response   
18-29  
30-44 10% 
45-64 37% 
65+ 53% 

 
35. How many years have you lived in the City of Tualatin? 

Response   
0-5 years 16% 
6-10 years 7% 
More than 10 years 76% 

 
36. Do you own your home, rent, or something else? 

Response   
Rent 13% 
Own 77% 
Something else 10% 

 
37. What is the highest level of education you have achieved? 

Response   
Less than high school  
High school diploma  
Some college 20% 
College degree 50% 
Graduate/professional school 30% 

 
38. Which of the following best describes your race or ethnicity? 

Response Category   
African American/Black 3.5% 
Asian/Pacific Islander 3.5% 
Hispanic/Latino  
Native American/American Indian  
White/Caucasian 93% 
Other  

 
  



 
 

12 

A total of 30 people participated in one of 7 focus groups.  The focus group meetings lasted one hour and were designed 
to get people’s reactions to the statistically valid survey.  Every participant was given the survey and asked to fill it out with 
no other presentation or information and then the group talked about their reactions to each question once everyone was 
done. 

The vast majority felt like the City is moving in the right direction and had very positive things to say about their experience 
in Tualatin.  Participants expressed satisfaction with the services they receive.  Comments focused on frustrations with 
traffic, the fact that there is no real downtown, and the Library is too small. 

There was some confusion about what a Civic Center means; to some it means a large, multi-use space that includes 
performing arts; to others, it sounded like a compound or multiple buildings; others knew and understood it to be 
synonymous with a City Hall.  There was general agreement that a Civic Center is a good idea, that it should downtown or 
central, and that it should be accessible. 

Generally, participants were initially supportive of a Civic Center, however, some questioned the need and others felt that 
it wasn’t the highest priority, especially given the TTSD bond measure on the November 2016 ballot.  The strongest 
messages in support were that it is very inefficient (for both employees and customers) to have City offices in so many 
different locations, and that an expanded Library would create additional space for high-priority needs.  When looking at 
the messages in opposition, the strongest message was about taxes going up.  

When thinking about the location, there was agreement by most that there are challenges associated with the Police site, 
primarily related to access.  The strongest reason to support the Police site is that it’s less expensive since the City 
already owns the land.  The Commons site was the favored option by most; participants reported that it would help create 
a downtown feel, that it would finish the development of the Commons and that it was much more accessible by foot and 
transit.  The commercial opportunities at the Commons seemed to cause some confusion with participants questioning the 
risk and what the City would do with the revenue. 



                                
 

 

 
 

            
      

 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/


                                
 

 

 
 

            
      

 

 
 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/


Civic Center and Library Expansion 
Public Involvement Report 

 
City Council Meeting 

July 11, 2016 



PI Outreach Activity Summary 

• Activities: 
• Facebook 
• Twitter 
• Instagram 
• YouTube 
• E-Blasts 
• Nextdoor 
• Advisory Committee 

Meetings 
• Neighborhood/CIO 

Meetings 

• Open House 
• Meals on Wheels 

Luncheon 
• Stoneridge Party in 

the Park 
• Blender Dash 
• Summer Reading 

Kick-Off 
• Chamber E-blast 
• Business Advisory 

Council 

• Farmers Market 
• Focus Groups 
• Online Survey 
• Statistically Valid 

Survey 
• Newsletter 
• News Articles 
• Emails 



Public Involvement Data Points 

• Outreach efforts reached over 
32,000 people  

• 16,000 through social media and e-
blasts 

• 1,200 through meetings, events and 
surveys 

• 15,000 through mailings 



• Council Direction for November 
2016 Election 

• Important Deadlines to Consider 
• Deadline to file ballot title – August 8, 2016 
• Last day to file notice of measure election 

with County – September 8, 2016 

Next Steps 



Questions & Discussion 
Thank You! 


	Agenda
	AI_2186_Update on the Youth Advisory Council's Activities for July 2016
	ATT_A. YAC Update
	Tualatin Youth Advisory Council
	Kaleidoscope Run 
	Movies on the Commons
	Slide Number 4

	AI_2176_ArtSplash Art Show & Sale
	ATT_ArtSplash PowerPoint Slides
	Slide Number 1
	Tualatin Lake of the Commons�8325 SW Nyberg Street
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	AI_2183_Consideration of Approval of the Minutes 
	ATT_City Council Work Session Minutes for June 27, 2016
	ATT_City Council Meeting Minutes for June 27, 2016
	AI_2180_Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Enter into IGA with Durham for Court Services
	ATT_Resolution No. 5288-16
	Resolution - Durham Court Services.pdf
	Tualatin - Durham Muni Court IGA - 2016.pdf
	Section 7.  Other Terms And Conditions.


	AI_2171_Intergovernmental Agreement With Metro For Participation With The Regional Illegal Dumping Patrol
	ATT_Reso 5286 - RID Metro
	ATT_2 - A RID IGA 2016
	AI_2185_Approval of a New Liquor License Application for Interrobang LLC
	ATT_Attachment A - Vicinity Map
	ATT_Attachment B- License Types
	ATT_Attachment C- Application
	AI_2188_Resolution Executing a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Tualatin Police Officers Association 
	ATT_Reso 5281-16 - TPOA Contract
	AI_2184_Tualatin City Hall Decision on Next Steps
	ATT_Report
	Appendix A
	F

	ATT_PowerPoint
	Civic Center and Library Expansion�Public Involvement Report
	PI Outreach Activity Summary
	Public Involvement Data Points
	Next Steps
	Questions & Discussion


